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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14" Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.qov, Web: www.ycipta.az.qov

AMENDED

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS FOR THE YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Board of
Directors of the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority (“YCIPTA”) and to the general public that the Board of Directors will hold a
meeting on:

Yuma County Department of Development Services — Aldrich Hall
2351 West 26" Street -- Yuma, AZ, 85364

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.05, notice is hereby given to the members of the
Yuma County Intergovernmental Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) and to the
general public that YCIPTA as part of its regular meeting will hold a meeting open
to the public as noted above.

Unless otherwise noted, meetings held at the above location are open to the
public.

The Board of Directors may vote to go into executive session during the noticed
meeting concerning any of the agenda items mentioned below. If authorized by the
requisite vote of the Directors, the executive session will be held immediately after
the vote and will not be open to the public. The executive session, if held, will be at
the same meeting location set forth above. The discussion may relate to
confidential matters permitted pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 38-431.03(A)(1)-(7). The
Chairman or other presiding officer shall instruct the persons present at the
executive session regarding the confidentiality requirements of the Open Meeting
Laws.

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, reasonable accommodation
requests may be made by contacting the Transit Director at 928-539-7076, ext 101

(TTY/TDD - Arizona Relay Service 711). Requests should be made as early as
possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

CALL TO ORDER

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos— Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CALL TO PUBLIC: The public is invited to speak on any item or any area of concern that is within the
jurisdiction of the YCIPTA Board of Directors. The Board is prohibited by the Arizona Open Meeting Law from
discussing, considering, or acting on items raised during the call to the public, but may direct the staff to place
an item on a future agenda. Individuals are limited to a five-minute presentation.

CONSENT CALENDAR: The following items listed under the Consent Calendar will be considered

as a group and acted upon by one motion with no separate discussion, unless a board member so requests. In
that event, the item will be removed for separate discussion and action.

1. Adopt the January 27, 2025 and March 24, 2025 regular session minutes.
Action required. Pg.4&9

DISCUSSION & ACTION ITEMS:

1. Discussion and or action regarding the FY2024 Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report. Katherine Shell, Heinfeld & Meech via phone to present.
Action required. Pg. 15

2. Discussion and or action regarding the FTA Triennial Review FY2023-2025
Preliminary Findings. No action Required. Pg. 127

3. Discussion and or action regarding the Fourth Amendment— IGA-YCIPTA-
City of Yuma Grant Passthrough Agreement. Action required. Pg. 134

4. Discussion and or action regarding the DRAFT YCIPTA FY2025-2026

Operating Budget. Possible action required. Pg. 140
5. Discussion and or action regarding FY2025-2026 YCIPTA Member Entity

Dues Increase Request. Action required. Pg. 149
6. Discussion and or action regarding a Corporate Authorization Resolution for

1st Bank Yuma. Action required. Pg. 152

7. Discussion and or action regarding YCIPTA Shelter and Bus Advertising
Program. No action required. Pg. 155

PROGRESS REPORTS:

1. Operations Manager Report/Maintenance Update— Anabel Teran, General
Manager, Max Isbell, Maintenance Manager — RATP Dev. No action
required. Pg. 158

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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2. Transit Director Report — Shelly Kreger, YCIPTA Transit Director. No action

is required. Pg. 160
3. Transit Operations Manager Report — David Garcia, Transit Operations
Manager. No action required. Pg. 161
4. Financial Report —  Will be distributed once completed. No action is
required.

Upon vote of the Directors, the Chairman recesses the Regular Session and
convenes Executive Session.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:
1. Discussion regarding the Transit Directors personal leave of absence.
This matter is brought in executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-

431.03(A)(1).

Chairman adjourns Executive Session and reconvenes Regular Session.

SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING DATE AND IDENTIFY AGENDA ITEMS:

Due to Memorial Day Holiday the meeting date will change to Tuesday, May 27,
2025.

e Draft FY25-26 Exhibit A EICTS Business Plan and Draft EICTS MOU 10t
Extension

e Exhibit A Amendment 15 to the YCIPTA/Quechan MOU for FY 2025-2026

ADJOURNMENT

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA)

REGULAR SESSION BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MONDAY, JANUARY 27, 2025 Page 1 of 5

The Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) met in a Regular Board
Meeting session on Monday, January 27, 2025, at Yuma County Department of Development Services,
Aldrich Hall; 2351 West 26th Street, Yuma, AZ 85364. The Chair, Mr. McGaughey called the meeting to
order at 1:30 p.m.

Members Present:

lan McGaughey/ Yuma County/Chair

Lizette Servin/City of San Luis/Vice Chair

Brian Golding, Sr./Quechan Tribe/Secretary/Treasurer
Louie Galaviz/City of Somerton

Arturo Durazo/Cocopah Tribe

Richard Marsh/Town of Wellton

Members Absent:
Jay Simonton/City of Yuma
Vacant/AWC

Others Present:

Shelly Kreger/YCIPTA/Transit Director

David Garcia/YCIPTA/Transit Operations Manager
Kirt Manuel/YCIPTA/Brand Ambassador

Dayanna Banuelos/YCIPTA/Clerk Il

Anabel Teran/RATP/General Manager

Max Isbell/RATP/Maintenance Manager

Donald Morrison/RATP/Operations Manager

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the Chair.

CALL TO PUBLIC:

There were no public comments made.

No action taken, no action required.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

No. 1: Adopt the December 9, 2024 regular session minutes. Action required.

Motion (Marsh/Galaviz): To approve as presented.
Voice Vote: Motion carries, 6-0 with Mr. Simonton being excused.
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REGULAR SESSION BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MONDAY, JANUARY 27, 2025 Page 2 of 5

DISCUSSION & ACTION ITEMS:

No. 1: Discussion and or action regarding the new appointment from the City of San Luis, Lizette Servin.
No action required.

Mr. McGaughey welcomed Ms. Lizette Servin, San Luis Council Member, to the Board.
No action taken, no action required.

No. 2: Discussion and or action regarding the Election of Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and
Secretary/Treasurer. Action required.

Motion (Galaviz/Marsh): To elect Mr. Brian Golding as Chairman.
Voice Vote: Motion carries, 6-0 with Mr. Simonton being excused.

Motion (Galaviz/Marsh): To elect Mr. Louie Galaviz as Vice Chair.
Voice Vote: Motion carries, 6-0 with Mr. Simonton being excused.

Motion (Galaviz/Marsh): To elect Mr. Arturo Durazo as Secretary/Treasurer.
Voice Vote: Motion carries, 6-0 with Mr. Simonton being excused.

Mr. Golding, newly elected Chair, presided over the remainder of the meeting.

No. 3: Discussion and or action to adopt Resolution 2025-001, authorizing the Transit Director to file
for FTA funding for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. Action required.

Ms. Kreger presented the item as contained in the Member packet.

Ms. Kreger stated that each year the Board adopts a resolution authorization to apply for Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) funding for the fiscal year.

Mr. Galaviz inquired if it was the same as last year and if there were any changes.
Ms. Kreger stated confirmed that it had not changed.

Motion (Galaviz/Marsh): To approve resolution 2025-001.
Voice Vote: Motion carries, 6-0 with Mr. Simonton being excused.

No. 4: Discussion and or action regarding YCIPTA Shelter and Bus Advertising Program. No action
required.

Mr. Manuel stated that one (1) full-bus wrap contract was signed and future projects are pending.

Mr. Manuel further stated that he had been exploring providers and trying to find the best option to
offer for a bus wrap.
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During the previous Board meeting clarification was requested regarding advertisement content
guidelines.

Mr. Manuel stated that the YCIPTA ad policy defines what advertising is not allowed. Staff refers to it
whenever prospecting opportunities fall into a gray area, and the Transit Director makes final
determinations. Mr. Manuel provided the following example: The advertising policy does not allow ads
that encourages drinking alcohol, but it does allow food and entertainment. The interpretation is that
these entities (bars/pubs) could advertise if the content of the ad itself was not focused on the alcohol.

Mr. Manuel stated that he began researching how to manage the advertising inventory that would not
impede operations. Mr. Manuel added that he has been exploring revenue and how fast it would be
achieved.

Mr. Galaviz inquired about profit margin loss on wraps or other advertising, if something were to happen
to it like it being ripped, torn, or graffitied.

Mr. Manuel stated that the cost of production is provided by the advertiser and YCIPTA does not cover

the cost.

Mr. Galaviz stated that he wanted to make sure that it is a revenue source and that it will provide
revenue.

Mr. Galaviz questioned if there was an automatic renewal on the advertising contracts to avoid going
through the process again.

Mr. Manuel stated that on the current contract, there is not an automatic renewal but it could be
discussed.

Mr. Galaviz inquired regarding the length of the contracts.
Mr. Manuel stated that the proposals that he has been working on are one (1) year contracts.

Ms. Kreger added that one of the reasons as to why is because they would have to remove the wrap
because of the heat to avoid causing damage on buses paint.

Mr. Marsh questioned where the applicants were received from.

Mr. Manuel stated that he started with the Yuma County Chamber of Commerce but he would be thrilled
to have more connections and/or introductions to possible buyers.

Mr. McGaughey expressed excitement about what is being presented.

No action taken, no action required.
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PROGRESS REPORTS:

No. 1: Operations Manager Report/Maintenance Update— Anabel Teran, General Manager, Max Isbell,
Maintenance Manager — RATP Dev. No action required.

Ms. Teran presented the Operations Report as contained in the Members packet.

Mr. Isbell stated that the Exhaust Gas Recirculation (EGR) issues were brought “in-house” due to the
availability of technicians at RWC group would be taking four (4) to six (6) weeks.

Mr. Isbell stated that they currently had one (1) engine at Rush Truck Centers and should be receiving it
next month. Mr. Isbel added that one (1) engine was taken to Ford about a week ago and another engine
was received but had to be sent back for warranty work.

No action taken, no action required.

No. 2: Transit Director Report — Shelly Kreger, YCIPTA Transit Director. No action is required.

Ms. Kreger presented the report as contained in the Member packet.

Mr. Golding questioned when the Crossroad Missions route deviation would start.

Mr. Morrison stated that it would be about a week to get everything situated.

No action taken, no action required.

No. 3: Transit Operations Manager Report — David Garcia, Transit Operations Manager. No action
required.

Mr. Garcia presented the report as stated in the Member packet.

No action taken, no action required.

No. 4: Financial Report — Marcela Garcia, Finance Manager. No action is required.

Ms. Kreger presented the report as contained in the Member packet, on the behalf of Ms. Garcia.
Mr. Galaviz questioned why the financial summaries were all lower than the previous year.

Ms. Kreger stated she currently did not have an answer but could come back next meeting with
information.

No action taken, no action required.
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Upon vote of the Directors, the Chairman recesses the Regular Session and convenes Executive Session.

Motion (McGaughey/Durazo): to convene Executive Session at 2:05 p.m.
Voice Vote: Motion carries 6-0, with Mr. Simonton being excused.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

No. 1: Discussion regarding the Transit Directors annual review. This matter is brought in executive
session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38- 431.03(A)(1).

No action taken, no action required.

Chairman adjourned Executive Session and reconvened Regular Session at 2:17 p.m.

DISCUSSION & ACTION ITEMS:

No. 5: Discussion and or action regarding the Transit Directors Annual Review. Action may be required.

Motion (Galaviz/Servin): To approve the recommendation of the 3% increase.
Voice Vote: Motion carries 6-0, Mr. Simonton was excused.

SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING DATE AND IDENTIFY AGENDA ITEMS:
February 24, 2025

There being no further business to come before the Authority in Regular Session, the meeting was
adjourned at 2:19 p.m.

YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Adopted this , 2025, Agenda Item

Carol Perez on Behalf of Dayanna Banuelos,
Board Secretary



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA) REGULAR
SESSION BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MONDAY, MARCH 24, 2025 Page 1of 6

The Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) met in a Regular Board
Meeting session on Monday, March 24, 2025, at Yuma County Department of Development Services,
Aldrich Hall; 2351 West 26th Street, Yuma, AZ 85364. The Chair, Brian Golding Sr, called the meeting
to order at 1:35 PM

Members Present:

Brian Golding, Sr./Quechan Indian Tribe/Chair
Louie Galaviz/City of Somerton/Vice Chair

lan McGaughey/Yuma County

Lizeth Servin/City of San Luis

Czarina Gallegos/Arizona Western College

Members Absent:
Arturo Durazo/Cocopah Indian Tribe/Secretary/Treasurer
Richard Marsh/Town of Wellton

Others Present:

Shelly Kreger/YCIPTA/Transit Director

David Garcia/YCIPTA/Transit Operations Manager
Carol Perez/YCIPTA/Transit Services Specialist
Denis Aceves/YCIPTA/Clerk |

Kirt Manuel/YCIPTA/Brand Ambassador

Anabel Teran/RATP/General Manager

Donald Morrison/RATP/Operations Manager

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Golding Sr.
CALL TO PUBLIC

No Public.

CONSENT CALENDAR:
No.1 Adopt the March 24 2025 regular session minutes—action required.

Motion: (Galaviz/McGaughey): To table this item until the next meeting
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 5-0 Mr. Durazo, and Mr. Marsh were excused

Mr. Golding Sr. asked Ms. Kreger as to why the minutes were not going to be presented.
Ms. Kreger stated that after a second review of the minutes, there were a few errors, and she would like

to fix them before getting it approved by the Board.

DISCUSSION & ACTION ITEMS:

No.1 Discussion and/or action regarding the new appointment for AWC Board of Director Czarina
Gallegos, Vice President of Financial and Administrative Services. No action is required.

Mr. Golding Sr. welcomed Ms. Gallegos, Interim Vice President for Finance and Administrative
Services, Arizona Western College (AWC) to the Board.
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Ms. Kreger expressed that she was very pleased that AWC has finally appointed someone to the Board
after having the seat empty for months.

Ms. Kreger stated that she would be providing Ms. Gallegos with a binder of documents regarding The
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) so she can be aware of the
services provided.

Ms. Kreger invited Ms. Gallegos and Ms. Servin to the YCAT office for a tour.

Ms. Gallegos stated that she was very pleased to be a member of the Board.

Mr. Galaviz welcomed Ms. Gallegos to the Board and advised her to accept Ms. Kreger's invitation to
YCIPTA office.

Ms. Servin welcomed Ms. Gallegos to the Board.
No action taken, no action required

No.2 Discussion and or action regarding possible the renewal of Board of Director term for Louie Galaviz,
City of Somerton, to February.28, 2030. Action required

Ms. Kreger stated to Mr. Golding Sr. that so far, all terms have gone to a five (5) year renewal.

Ms. Kreger states that Mr. Galaviz's term ended on February 28, 2025, recommending that his term be
renewed for an additional five (5) years ending February 28, 2030.

Mr. Golding Sr. inquired with Ms. Kreger whether it was generally their practice to adopt or accept their
appointment by motion.

Ms. Kreger stated that it was correct.
Motion: (McGaughey/Servin): To approve Mr. Galaviz term to be renewed
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 5-0 Mr. Durazo, and Mr. Marsh were excused

No.3 Discussion and or action Discussion and or action regarding new appointments to the Personnel
Subcommittee. Action required.

Ms. Kreger presented the item as contained in the Members packet.

Mr. Golding Sr. stated that the most recent amendments, the Bylaws state that the Chairperson
automatically is a member of the personal subcommittee.

Mr. Golding Sr. asked Mr. McGaughey if he was willing to serve.
Mr. McGaughey stated he was willing to serve.

Mr. Golding Sr. stated that Mr. Simonton was not present to speak for himself.
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Mr. Golding Sr. stated that he was willing to put it out there for the Board who are willing to serve
otherwise he is willing to volunteer for Mr. Simonton to be reassigned to the Subcommittee.

Mr. Golding Sr. stated that he was willing to re-elect Mr. Simonton to continue with the Personal
Subcommittee

Motion (Galaviz/Czarina): To re-elect Mr. Simonton to the Personnel Subcommittee
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 5-0 Mr. Durazo, and Mr. Marsh were excused

No.4 Discussion and or action regarding new appointments to the Bylaws Subcommittee.
Action required.

Ms. Kreger presented the item as contained in the Members packet.

Mr. Galaviz stated that it would be a great opportunity for the new Board Members to take over their
predecessor’'s subcommittee assignment.

Mr. McGaughey also stated that it would be great if they replaced the Board members who occupied
that spot in the subcommittee.

Ms. Servin stated that she was willing to take over her predecessor’'s subcommittee spot.
Ms. Gallegos stated she was willing to take over the subcommittee.
Motion (Galaviz/McGaughey): To elect Lizette Servin and Czarina Gallegos to the Bylaws

subcommittee
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 5-0 Mr. Durazo, and Mr. Marsh were excused

No.5. Discussion and or action regarding new appointments to the Financial Sustainability Committee.
Action required.

Ms. Kreger presented the item as contained in the Members packet.

Mr. McGaughey stated that he was willing to stay on the Financial Sustainability Committee.
Ms. Kreger stated only one more member was needed.

Ms. Gallegos stated she was willing to join the financial sustainability committee.

Ms. Kreger stated that she would like to schedule a meeting to go over the budget numbers.

Motion (Galaviz/Servin): To elect Czarina Gallegos to the Financial Sustainability Committee
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 5-0 Mr. Durazo, and Mr. Marsh were excused

No.6 Discussion and or action regarding new appointments to the Transit Operations and Planning
Subcommittee. Action required.

Ms. Kreger presented the item as contained in the Members packet.

Ms. Kreger stated that there is an San Luis Unmet Transit coming up for the City of San Luis and
believes it would be beneficial to have someone from the city of t San Luis to be a part of the

11
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Subcommittee.
Ms. Servin stated she will join the Transit Operations and Planning Subcommittee.

Mr. McGaughey stated he will be stepping down and will appoint Ms. Servin in his place to join the
Transit Operations and Planning Subcommittee.

Motion (McGaughey/Galaviz): To elect Lizette Servin to the Transit Operations and Planning

Subcommittee
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 5-0 Mr. Durazo, and Mr. Marsh were excused

No.7 Discussion and action regarding YCIPTA Shelter and Bus Advertising Program. No action required.

Mr. Manuel stated to the Board that just a few days ago a major contract fell through but found
someone who was willing to take over the contract.

Mr. Manuel stated that most fleet if completely sold with buses fully wrapped.

Mr. Manuel stated he does not have the percentage or numbers of how many shelters have been sold
yet but are very close to closing all inventory.

Mr. McGaughey commended Mr. Manuel on the awesome work he has been doing.
Mr. Galvis inquired about when they will start seeing the revenue from the advertisement.

Mr. Manuel stated that the number he provided in the report would have been accurate but due to the
contract not going through Mr. Manuel does not have the updated revenue.

Ms. Kreger stated that the buses will start getting wrapped this upcoming week.

No action taken, no action required

PROGRESS REPORTS:

No.1 Operations Manager Report/Maintenance Update— Anabel Teran, General Manager, Max Isbell,
Maintenance Manager — RATP Dev. No action required.

Mr. Morrison mentioned that Ms. Terran had to step out of the meeting and Mr. Isbell was out sick.
Mr. Morrison stated that in the past meeting there have been four (4) collisions.

Mr. Morrison continued to explain the collisions to the Members of the Board.

Mr. McGaughey stated that before they would receive notifications.

Ms. Kreger stated that they receive notifications only when there were major accidents.

12
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Mr. McGaughey stated that it was fine the way it was.

Mr. Morrison stated that the drivers will be getting training in April.

No action taken, no action required

No.2 Transit Director Report — Shelly Kreger, YCIPTA Transit Director. No action is required.
Ms. Kreger presented the item as contained in the Members packet.

Ms. Kreger stated that she met with Kim Joyce finance to talk about their grant management program,
to having a “plan B”, due to Ms. Garcia’s illness.

Ms. Kreger stated that she spoke to the Trans Pro and discussed about moving forward with the plan.

Ms. Kreger stated she received the cost, and it was higher than she anticipated, the whole package
was $67,000.

Ms. Gallegos asked Ms. Kreger what the Yuma Metropolitan Planning Organization (YMPO) was.
No action taken, no action required
No.3 Transit Operations Manager Report — David Garcia, Transit Operations Manager. No action required.

Mr. Garcia presented the report as stated in the Member packet.

Mr. Garcia stated that he received an estimate back from Swiftly, a company Mr. Garcia has been
working with for the AVL tracking services for vehicles.

Mr. Garicia stated that the demonstration plans and the estimates are included in the Members packet.

No action taken, no action required

No.4 Financial Report — Marcela Garcia, Finance Manager. No action is required.
Ms. Kreger presented the report as contained in the Members’ packet, on behalf of Ms. Garcia.

No action taken, no action required

SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING DATE AND IDENTIFY AGENDA ITEMS:
April 28, 2025

There being no further business to come before the Authority in regular session, the meeting was
adjourned at 2:40pm

13
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Adopted this , 2025, Agenda ltem

Denis Aceves, Board Secretary
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14 Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
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April 21, 2025
Discussion and Action ltem 1

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board
of Directors

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the YCIPTA FY2024 Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). Katherine Shell from
HeinfeldMeech will be presenting via phone.

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the YCIPTA
FY2024 Annual Comprehensive Annual Report (ACFR).

Background and Summary: The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for Fiscal Year 2024 has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles to present the results of operations and the financial
condition of the Authority as of June 30, 2024, and is hereby submitted for
approval by the Board of Directors.

As part of the annual financial reporting process, YCIPTA utilizes the services of
an independent public accounting firm, which performs an audit of YCIPTA'’s
financial records. This audit is conducted to ensure that YCIPTA'’s financial
records fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of YCIPTA and
the results of its operations for the fiscal year. Another important purpose of the
audit is to assess YCIPTA'’s accounting principles and internal control structure
relative its financial statements.

The ACFR was submitted on March 31, 2025 to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse.

Financial Impacts: N/A

Budgeted: N/A

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Recommended Motion: Staff recommends that the Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors
approve the YCIPTA FY2024 Annual Comprehensive Annual Report (ACFR).

Legal Counsel Review: N/A

Attachments: Yuma County IPTA Communication to Governance and the FY2024
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

For information regarding this agenda item, please contact Shelly Kreger via email
to: skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for submission:

(g hor—

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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#)) HeinfeldMeech Tucson - Scotidale - Flgstar
March 31, 2025

To the Honorable Chairman and Members of the Board
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA)

We have audited the financial statements of YCIPTA for the year ended June 30, 2024. Professional
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as well as
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated
such information in our engagement letter provided to you during the planning phase of the audit.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following matters related to our
audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by YCIPTA are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No
new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
the year. We noted no transactions entered into by YCIPTA during the year for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

e Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on the length
of time management estimates those assets will provide some economic benefit in the future.

e Management’s estimate of the accrued compensated absences is based on leave rates and
YCIPTA policies regarding payment of unused vested leave.

e The assumptions used in the actuarial valuations of the pension plan is based on historical
trends and industry standards.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. A misstatement is defined
as a difference between the reported amount, classification, presentation, or disclosure of a financial
statement item and the amount, classification, presentation, or disclosure that is required for the
item to be presented fairly in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The
misstatement of the financial statements that was corrected by management are discussed in finding
2024-001 in the Single Audit Report.

In addition, as part of the professional services we provided to YCIPTA, we assisted with the
preparation of the financial statements, the notes to financial statements, and the SEFA and related
notes as well as the Data Collection Form submission to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. In providing
these services we prepared adjusting journal entries necessary to convert the accounting records to
the basis of accounting required by generally accepted accounting principles. Those adjusting journal
entries have been provided to management who reviewed and approved those entries and accepted
responsibility for them.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the
management representation letter provided to us at the conclusion of the audit.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to YCIPA’s financial statements or a determination of
the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the
relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants regarding
auditing and accounting matters.

Discussions with Management

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management throughout the course of the year. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention as YCIPTA’s auditors.
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Compliance with Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, and as appropriate, our firm, have complied with all
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. continually
assesses client relationships to comply with relevant ethical requirements, including independence,
integrity, and objectivity, and policies and procedures related to the acceptance and continuance of
client relationships and specific engagements. Our firm follows the “Independence Rule” of the AICPA
Code of Professional Conduct and the rules of state boards of accountancy and applicable regulatory
agencies. It is the policy of the firm that all employees be familiar with and adhere to the
independence, integrity, and objectivity rules, regulations, interpretations, and rulings of the AICPA,
U.S. Government Accountability Office (GAQO), and applicable state boards of accountancy.

Responsibility for Fraud

It is important for both management and the members of the governing body to recognize their role
in preventing, deterring, and detecting fraud. One common misconception is that the auditors are
responsible for detecting fraud. Auditors are required to plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements do not include material misstatements caused by
fraud. Unfortunately most frauds which occur in an organization do not meet this threshold.

The attached document prepared by the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE) is provided
as a courtesy to test the effectiveness of the fraud prevention measures of your organization. Some
of these steps may already be in place, others may not. Not even the most well-designed internal
controls or procedures can prevent and detect all forms of fraud. However, an awareness of fraud
related factors, as well as the active involvement by management and the members of the governing
body in setting the proper “tone at the top”, increases the likelihood that fraud will be prevented,
deterred and detected.

Additional Reports Issued
In addition to the auditor’s report on the financial statements we also issued the Single Audit
Reporting Package related to this audit.

Other Important Communications Related to the Audit

Attached to this letter are a copy of the signed engagement letter provided to us at the initiation of
the audit, and a copy of the management representation letter provided to us at the conclusion of
the audit. If there are any questions on the purpose or content of these letters please contact the
engagement partner identified in the attached engagement letter.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the members of the Board of Directors and
management of YCIPTA and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Neinfeld Meeth & Co.VC

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C.
Scottsdale, Arizona
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Fraud Prevention Checklist

The most cost-effective way to limit fraud losses is to prevent fraud from occurring. This checklist is
designed to help organizations test the effectiveness of their fraud prevention measures.

1. Is ongoing anti-fraud training provided to all employees of the organization?

Do employees understand what constitutes fraud?

Have the costs of fraud to the company and everyone in it — including lost profits, adverse
publicity, job loss and decreased morale and productivity — been made clear to employees?

Do employees know where to seek advice when faced with uncertain ethical decisions, and
do they believe that they can speak freely?

Has a policy of zero-tolerance for fraud been communicated to employees through words
and actions?

2. Is an effective fraud reporting mechanism in place?

Have employees been taught how to communicate concerns about known or potential
wrongdoing?

Is there an anonymous reporting channel available to employees, such as a third-party
hotline?

Do employees trust that they can report suspicious activity anonymously and/or
confidentially and without fear of reprisal?

Has it been made clear to employees that reports of suspicious activity will be promptly and
thoroughly evaluated?

Do reporting policies and mechanisms extend to vendors, customers and other outside
parties?

3. Toincrease employees’ perception of detection, are the following proactive measures taken
and publicized to employees?

Is possible fraudulent conduct aggressively sought out, rather than dealt with passively?

Does the organization send the message that it actively seeks out fraudulent conduct
through fraud assessment questioning by auditors?

Are surprise fraud audits performed in addition to regularly scheduled audits?

Is continuous auditing software used to detect fraud and, if so, has the use of such software
been made known throughout the organization?
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10.

11.

Is the management climate/tone at the top one of honesty and integrity?

e Are employees surveyed to determine the extent to which they believe management acts
with honesty and integrity?

e Are performance goals realistic?

e Have fraud prevention goals been incorporated into the performance measures against
which managers are evaluated and which are used to determine performance-related
compensation?

e Has the organization established, implemented and tested a process for oversight of fraud
risks by the board of directors or others charged with governance (e.g., the audit
committee)?

Are fraud risk assessments performed to proactively identify and mitigate the company’s
vulnerabilities to internal and external fraud?

Are strong anti-fraud controls in place and operating effectively, including the following?
e Proper separation of duties

e Use of authorizations

e Physical safeguards

e Job rotations

e Mandatory vacations

Does the internal audit department, if one exists, have adequate resources and authority to
operate effectively and without undue influence from senior management?

Does the hiring policy include the following (where permitted by law)?
e Past employment verification

e Criminal and civil background checks

e Credit checks

e Drug screening

e Education verification

e References check

Are employee support programs in place to assist employees struggling with addictions,
mental/ emotional health, family or financial problems?

Is an open-door policy in place that allows employees to speak freely about pressures,
providing management the opportunity to alleviate such pressures before they become

acute?

Are anonymous surveys conducted to assess employee morale?
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#)) HeinfeldMeech Tucson - Scotidale - Flgstar
August 19, 2024

Board of Directors and Management

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
2715 E. 14th St.

Yuma, AZ 85365

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) for the year ended June 30, 2024. We
encourage you to read this letter carefully as it includes important information regarding the services
we will be providing to the YCIPTA. If there are any questions on the content of the letter, or the services
we will be providing, we would welcome the opportunity to meet with you to discuss this information
further.

Audit Scope and Objectives

We will audit the financial statements of the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority, including the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Yuma
County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024.

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information that accompanies the YCIPTA's
financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole:

1. Schedule of expenditures of federal awards

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States provide for certain required
supplementary information (RSI) to supplement the YCIPTA’s basic financial statements. Such
information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of
our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the YCIPTA’s RSl in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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The following RSl is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain
limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1. Management’s discussion and analysis
2. Budgetary comparison schedules
3. GASB-required pension schedules

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, we will read the following other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

1. Other information included with the audited financial statements such as the transmittal letter
and statistical data

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinions about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all
material respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. The objectives
also include reporting on:

e Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on
the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

e Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of
opinion) on compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
federal awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance
with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

An important aspect to our expression of an opinion on the financial statements is understanding the
concept of materiality. Our determination of materiality is a matter of professional judgment and is
affected by our perception of the financial information needs of users of the financial statements.
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For purposes of determining materiality we may assume that reasonable users —

1. have a reasonable knowledge of business and economic activities and accounting and a
willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

2. understand that financial statements are prepared, presented, and audited to levels of
materiality;

3. recognize the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of
estimates, judgment, and the consideration of future events; and

4. make reasonable judgements based on the information in the financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit

We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the
provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of
major programs in accordance with Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to
enable us to express such an opinion. As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3)
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to
the YCIPTA or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the YCIPTA. Because the
determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform
specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in the financial statements nor do they expect auditors to
provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal
control, and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is
properly planned and performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct
and material effect on the financial statements or major programs. However, we will inform the
appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or
misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of
management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless
clearly inconsequential. We will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later
periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.
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We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the YCIPTA's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts. Our procedures will also include, as deemed necessary, tests of the physical existence of
inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence
with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will also request, if
deemed necessary, written representations from the YCIPTA’s attorneys as part of the engagement, and
they may bill you for responding to this inquiry.

Audit Procedures — Internal Control

We will obtain an understanding of the YCIPTA and its environment, including internal control relevant
to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override
of internal control. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that
we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other
noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if
performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and,
accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to
Government Auditing Standards.

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or
detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal
award program. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion
on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued
pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that
are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance.
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Audit Procedures — Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of the YCIPTA’s compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will
not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report
on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the YCIPTA has complied with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions
of federal awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and
other applicable procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the YCIPTA’s major programs. For
federal programs that are included in the OMB Compliance Supplement, our compliance and internal
control procedures will relate to the compliance requirements that the OMB Compliance Supplement
identifies being subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on the
YCIPTA’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on
compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

Reporting

We will issue written reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to the
Governing Board of the YCIPTA. Circumstances may arise in which our reports may differ from expected
form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it
may be necessary for us to modify our opinion, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or
other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our
opinion is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we
are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline
to express an opinion or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on
compliance and other matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope
of testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the YCIPTA’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
YCIPTA’s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control over
compliance will state that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to
describe the scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any
other purpose.
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Nonaudit Services

As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements, notes to the financial
statements, and supplementary information, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
In addition, we will assist with the completion of the auditee section of the data collection form to be
submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. You have expressed your intention to use these nonaudit
services within the scope of your request for proposal for audit services. These nonaudit services do not
constitute an audit and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards. Upon engagement of the audit we will utilize the general ledger, accounting records, YCIPTA
prepared schedules and other information provided by YCIPTA personnel in order to prepare the
necessary year-end adjusting journal entries and to prepare drafts of the financial statements, notes to
the financial statements, and the supplementary information.

You are responsible for the information provided by the YCIPTA and for assuming all management
responsibilities related to the financial statements, notes to the financial statements, supplementary
information, data collection form, and the nonaudit services we provide. You are also responsible for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls over the financial statements process. Prior
to the issuance of the financial statements you will be required to acknowledge in the management
representation letter our assistance with the preparation of the financial statements, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes to the financial statements, and acknowledge you
have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you are required to designate an individual with suitable
skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the nonaudit services we provide; evaluate the adequacy and
results of these nonaudit services; and accept responsibility for the nonaudit services.

As the YCIPTA’s independent auditor, professional standards place specific requirements on our
provision of certain nonaudit services. We are strictly prohibited from assuming management
responsibilities or making management decisions; therefore, the nonaudit services we provide are
limited to those indicated above. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to
perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management
responsibilities or making management decisions. Accordingly, to maintain our independence it is
imperative that management understand its responsibilities and is capable of fulfilling these
responsibilities. If there are any questions or concerns regarding management’s responsibilities or ability
to fulfill these responsibilities we request that you immediately contact us so that we may assess the
circumstance and our continued independence with respect to providing audit services.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for
(1) designing, implementing, establishing and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, including internal controls over federal awards, and for evaluating and
monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following
laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are
administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that management is
reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported.

Page 6

27



Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection
and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying information in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for compliance with
applicable laws and regulations (including federal statutes) and the provisions of contracts and grant
agreements (including award agreements). Your responsibilities also include identifying significant
contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for the
accuracy and completeness of that information.

Management is also responsible for making schedule of expenditures of federal awards, all financial
records, and related information available to us; for the accuracy and completeness of that information
(including information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers); and for the evaluation of
whether there are any conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for the 12 months after the financial statement
date or shortly thereafter (for example, within an additional three months if currently known). You are
also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation,
identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, and other
matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other
information as needed to perform an audit under Uniform Guidance; (3) additional information we may
request for the purpose of the audit; and (4) and unrestricted access to persons within the YCIPTA from
whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require
certain written representations from you about the financial statements; the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements; and related matters.

Management’s responsibilities also include adjusting the financial statements to correct material
misstatements and confirming to us in the representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each
opinion unit taken as a whole.

Management is responsible for the design and implementation of programs to prevent and detect fraud,
and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the YCIPTA involving (1) management,
(2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have
a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the YCIPTA received in
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you
are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the YCIPTA complies with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, agreements, and grants. You are also responsible taking timely and appropriate steps to
remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
that we report.
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Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to evaluate and
monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal
awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance
identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings;
and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan. The
summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review prior to issuance of our
reports.

Management is responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying
with the compliance requirements and for preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
(including notes and noncash assistance received, and COVID-19 related concepts, such as lost revenues,
if applicable) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported
on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to include the audited financial
statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards that includes our
report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available to intended users of the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later than the date the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in
the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those
used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have
disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or
presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have
been engaged to report on, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document
that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree
to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that
includes our report thereon or to make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the
supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our
report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in a written representation letter that
(1) you are responsible for presentation of supplementary information in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; (2) you believe the supplementary
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation
have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such
changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of supplementary information.

Page 8

29



Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or studies related to
the objectives discussed in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility
includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations
resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or studies. You are also
responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and for the timing and
format for providing that information.

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial
statements published electronically on your website, management understands that electronic sites are
a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained
in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original
document.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas to be tested. Our tests will not include a detailed check of all transactions for
the period.

We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of our audit planning:

1. Management override of controls
2. Improper revenue recognition

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the YCIPTA and its environment, including internal
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design
the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1)
errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or
governmental regulations that are attributable to the YCIPTA or to acts by management or employees
acting on behalf of the YCIPTA. We will generally communicate our significant findings at the conclusion
of the audit. However, some matters could be communicated sooner, particularly if significant
difficulties are encountered during the audit where assistance is needed to overcome the difficulties or
if the difficulties may lead to a modified opinion. We will also communicate any internal control related
matters that are required to be communicated under professional standards.

We expect to begin our audit in August 2024 and conclude audit procedures and date our report in
March 2025.

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities outlined in the
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements section of this letter.
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Use of Third-Party Service Providers

We maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your
information. We may, depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in providing
our professional services. The following service providers may be utilized in the completion of our
engagement:

e (Capital Confirmation, Inc. — electronic bank and account balance confirmation service
e (Citrix ShareFile — web-based application service to transfer files

e CCH Engagement Organizer — web-based application service to transfer files

e Harvest Investments, Ltd. — investment portfolio valuation service

You hereby consent and authorize us to use the above service providers, if deemed necessary, to
complete the professional services outlined in this letter.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

Jennifer Shields is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.

We will provide copies of our reports to the YCIPTA; however, management is responsible for
distribution of the reports and the financial statements.

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection
Form that summarizes our audit findings. It is management’s responsibility to electronically submit the
reporting package (including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary
schedule of prior audit findings, auditor’s reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data
Collection Form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic
submission and certification. The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted
within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s reports or nine months after the end
of the audit period.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C., and
constitutes confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit
documentation available to a cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal agency providing
direct or indirect funding, the U.S. Government Accountability Office, or other authorized governmental
agency for the purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out
oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C., personnel.
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

Page 10
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The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven (7) years after
the report release date, or for any additional period requested by a regulator, cognizant agency,
oversight agency for audit, or pass-through entity. Upon expiration of the seven year period, or any
additional period, we will commence the process of destroying the contents of our engagement files. If
we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit
finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the
audit documentation.

In the event we are required to respond to a subpoena, court order or other legal process for the
production of documents and/or testimony relative to information we obtained and/or prepared during
the course of this engagement, you agree to compensate us at our hourly rates, for the time we expend
in connection with such response, and to reimburse us for all of our out-of-pocket costs incurred in that
regard.

Any disagreement, controversy, or claim (“dispute”) that may arise from any aspect of our services,
including this engagement or any prior engagement, will be submitted to mediation. The parties will
engage in the mediation process in good faith once a written request to mediate has been given by any
party. Any mediation initiated as a result of this engagement shall be administered by The American
Arbitration Association, according to its mediation rules before resorting to litigation. The results of any
such mediation shall be binding only upon agreement of each party to be bound. Each party will bear its
own costs in the mediation. The fees and expenses of the mediator will be shared equally.

The nature of our services makes it difficult, with the passage of time, to gather and present evidence
that fully and fairly establishes the facts underlying any dispute that may arise between us. The parties
agree that, notwithstanding any statute or law of limitations that might otherwise apply to a dispute,
including one arising out of this agreement or the services performed under this agreement, for breach
of contract or fiduciary duty, tort, fraud, misrepresentation or any other cause of action or remedy, any
action or legal proceeding by you against us must be commenced within twenty-four (24) months
(“limitation period”) after the date when we deliver our final audit report under this agreement to you,
regardless of whether we do other services for you relating to the audit report, or you shall be forever
barred from commencing a lawsuit or obtaining any legal or equitable relief or recovery. The limitation
period applies and begins to run even if you have not suffered any damage or loss, or have not become
aware of the existence or possible existence of a dispute.

Professional standards prohibit auditors from agreeing to indemnify attest clients for damages, losses
or costs arising from lawsuits, claims or settlements that relate, directly or indirectly, to the client’s acts.
As such, professional standards will prevail for indemnification clauses included in audit contracts. In
addition, we are unable to obtain waivers on our professional liability insurance policy for certain
provisions, including indemnification provisions, provisions requiring the firm to name the YCIPTA as an
additional insured party, and a waiver of subrogation rights.
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Professional standards require us to be independent with respect to you in the performance of these
services. Any discussion that you have with our personnel regarding potential employment with you
could impair our independence with respect to this engagement. Therefore, we request that you inform
us prior to any such discussions so that we can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our
independence and obijectivity. Further, any employment offers to any staff members working on this
engagement without our prior knowledge may require substantial additional procedures to ensure our
independence. You will be responsible for any additional costs incurred to perform these procedures.

Our fee for these services will be $30,860. We exercised care in estimating the fee and believe it
accurately indicates the scope of the work. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as
work progresses and are payable on presentation.

Our fees are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel, timely receipt of information, and
the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit, including
factors beyond our control, such as new accounting pronouncements or legal requirements, additional
consultation, and assistance in correcting errors in your financial records. We will plan the engagement
based on the assumption that your personnel will prepare and provide us with the items listed in our
request for audit information, including preparing requested schedules, retrieving supporting
documents, and preparing confirmations. If, for whatever reason, your personnel are unavailable to
provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the work we have to
do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees over
our original fee estimate. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive
at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. Additional fees incurred will be billed at the
following hourly rates: Partner - $283; Manager - $231; Senior - $159; Staff - $118.

If any term or provision of this agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such term or
provision will be deemed stricken, and all other terms and provisions will remain in full force and effect.

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external
peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters of
comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2021 peer review report accompanies this
letter.
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We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the
significant terms of our engagement. Please feel free to contact us at any time if you have any questions
or concerns. If you have any questions regarding this letter, please let us know. If you agree with the
terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,

Aeineld Meech & Co.VC

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C.
Scottsdale, Arizona

cc: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
RESPONSE

Please indicate the name of the individual responsible for overseeing the nonaudit services of preparing
the year-end adjusting journal entries and the preparation of the financial statements:

Marcel a Garci a
Name:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority.

Shel |y Kreger
Printed Name:

Transit Director
Title:

_ X%W "/(wg,w

08/ 19/ 2024

Date:
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Grant Bennett Associates & Trutemeadt

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

Report on the Firm's System of Quality Control
August 31, 2021
To Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. and the Peer Review Committee of the California Society of CPAs

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Heinfeld, Meech &
Co., P.C. (the firm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2021. Our peer review was conducted in accordance
with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards).

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review as
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an
explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating.

Firm’s Responsibility

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all
material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements
deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when appropriate, and for
remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any.

Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm’'s
compliance therewith based on our review.

Required Selections and Considerations
Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards,
including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act and an audit of an employee benefit plan.

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.

Opinion

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Heinfeld, Meech & Co.,
P.C. in effect for the year ended May 31, 2021, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the
firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional
standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. Heinfeld,
Meech & Co., P.C. has received a peer review rating of pass.

GRANT BENNETT ASSOCIATES
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

10850 Gold Center Drive, Suite 260 1970 Broadway, Suite 260

GB Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 Oakland, CA 94612 Princeville, HI
C P A 916/922-5109 FAX 916/641-5200 510/817-4886 888/763-7323
www.gbacpa.com Together as One. Grant Bennett Associates is a Member of the Alliott Global Alliance of independent professional firms.
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Yo

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14" Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C.
1365 N. Scottsdale Road, Suite 300
Scottsdale, AZ 85257

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in financial position and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the disclosures (collectively the “financial statements”), for the
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all
material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items
are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered
material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of our signature, the following
representations made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1.  We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter,
including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary information in
accordance with the applicable criteria.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP
and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary
government and all component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to
be included in the financial reporting entity.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

The methods, significant assumptions, and data used in making accounting estimates and their
related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or disclosure that is
reasonable in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses,
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or
payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with U.S. GAAP.

Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of
noncompliance, subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements or in the schedule of findings and
guestioned costs.

The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been
evaluated, and if necessary, have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S.
GAAP.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the YCIPTA is contingently liable, if any, have
been properly recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided

10.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records (including information
obtained from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other
matters and all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the YCIPTA from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or summaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the

financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the YCIPTA and involves:
e Management,
e Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
e Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the YCIPTA’s
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or
others.

We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or waste or abuse, whose
effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the YCIPTA's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions, including any side agreements.

Government-specific

18.

19.

20.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with,
or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

If applicable, we have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, or abuse that you have

reported to us.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

39



21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

We have identified and communicated to you any previous audits, attestation engagements,
and other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have
been implemented.

We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with
respect to the period under audit.

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well
as our planned corrective actions, for the report.

The YCIPTA has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and fund balance or
net position.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and
contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified fraud and suspected fraud
that we believe have a material effect on the financial statements or other financial data
significant to the audit objectives, and any other instances that warrant the attention of those
charged with governance.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified noncompliance with
provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit
objectives, and any other instances that warrant the attention of those charged with
governance.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified of abuse that could be
quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial statements or other financial data
significant to the audit objectives.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

In addition to your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements, notes to
the financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and the data
collection form. We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services,
including that

e we assume all management responsibilities;

e oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably within senior

management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience;
e evaluate the adequacy and results of the nonaudit services performed;
e and accept responsibility for the results of the nonaudit services.

We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for the financial statements, notes
to the financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and the data
collection form on which you have assisted with the preparation.

The YCIPTA has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances
on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

The YCIPTA has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending
budgets.

If applicable, the financial statements include all component units, appropriately present

majority equity interest in legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity
interest, and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations.

The financial statements include all fiduciary activities required by U.S. GAAP.
The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

If applicable, provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and
recorded.

All payroll information and the individual employment data have been properly submitted to
the state retirement system, and the employer contributions have been properly submitted to
the retirement system.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,
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41.

42.

43,

44,

45,

46.

47.

48.

Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

Special and extraordinary items, if any, are appropriately classified and reported.
Deposits and investment securities are properly classified as to risk and are properly disclosed.

Capital assets are properly capitalized, reported, and, if applicable, depreciated or amortized.

We have appropriately disclosed the YCIPTA’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted
or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly
recognized under the policy.

We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to
management that are required to be disclosed. Significant estimates are estimates at the
balance sheet date that could change materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to
volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas for
which events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI
is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you
any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation
of the RSI.

With respect to the supplementary information presented, such as the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards.

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplementary information in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and we believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information have not changed from those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed
to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement and
presentation of the supplementary information.

b. If the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements,
we will make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the
supplementary information no later than the date we issue the supplementary information
and the auditor’s report thereon.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,
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49.

50.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the other information included in the financial
statements, such as the transmittal letter and statistical data. We believe the other information,
including its form and content, is fairly presented and is materially consistent with the basic
financial statements.

With respect to federal award programs:

a. We are responsible for understanding and complying with and have complied with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance), including requirements relating to preparation of the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards (SEFA).

b. We acknowledge our responsibility for preparing and presenting the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and related disclosures in accordance with the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance, and we believe the SEFA, including its form and
content, is fairly presented in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. The methods of
measurement or presentation of the SEFA have not changed from those used in the prior
period and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations
underlying the measurement or presentation of the SEFA.

c. Ifthe SEFAis not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the audited
financial statements readily available to the intended users of the SEFA no later than the
date we issue the SEFA and the auditor’s report thereon.

d. We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and related
activities subject to the Uniform Guidance compliance audit, and have included in the SEFA,
expenditures made during the audit period for all awards provided by federal agencies in
the form of federal awards, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees,
property (including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies,
insurance, food commodities, direct appropriations, and other direct assistance.

e. We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the
requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal
awards related to each of our federal programs and have identified and disclosed to you
the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal
awards that are considered to have a direct and material effect on each major program.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
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We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained,
effective internal control over compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable
assurance that we are managing our federal awards in compliance with federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have a material
effect on our federal programs. We believe the internal control system is adequate and is
functioning as intended.

We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any
other correspondence with federal agencies or pass-through entities relevant to federal
programs and related activities.

We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific programs
as a major program.

We have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements (except for
noncompliance disclosed to you), including when applicable, those set forth in the OMB
Compliance Supplement, relating to federal awards and have identified and disclosed to you
all amounts questioned and all known noncompliance with the direct and material
compliance requirements of federal awards, if any.

We have disclosed any communications from federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance
requirements, including communications received from the end of the period covered by
the compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report.

We have disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective actions taken for
previous audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly
relate to the objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and corrective
actions taken from the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of
the auditor’s report.

Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant
guidelines in OMB’s Uniform Guidance (2 CFR Part 200, Subpart E).

We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may have
varying interpretations.

We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct
and material compliance requirements, including information related to federal program
financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period affecting
noncompliance during the reporting period.

There are no such known instances of noncompliance with direct and material compliance
requirements that occurred subsequent to the period covered by the auditor’s report.

No changes have been made in internal control over compliance or other factors that might
significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action we have taken regarding
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance,
subsequent to the period covered by the auditor’s report.

Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are
supported by the books and records from which the financial statements have been
prepared.

The copies of federal program financial reports provided you are true copies of the reports
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through
entity, as applicable.

If applicable, we have monitored subrecipients to determine that they have expended
subawards in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of the subaward and have met the other pass-through entity requirements of the Uniform
Guidance.

If applicable, we have issued management decisions for audit findings that relate to federal
awards made to subrecipients and such management decisions have been issued within six
months of acceptance of the audit report by the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Additionally,
we have followed-up ensuring that the subrecipient has taken timely and appropriate
action on all deficiencies detected through audits, on-site reviews, and other means that
pertain to the federal award provided to the subrecipient.

If applicable, we have considered the results of subrecipient audits and have made any
necessary adjustments to our books and records.

We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles.

We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit
findings to include all findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance, and we
have provided you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings
by federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, including all management
decisions.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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y. We are responsible for and have ensured the reporting package does not contain protected
personally identifiable information

z. We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the Data
Collection Form as required by the Uniform Guidance.

aa. We are responsible for taking corrective action on each audit finding of the compliance
audit and have developed a corrective action plan that meets the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance.

bb. If applicable, we have disclosed to you all contracts or other agreements with service
organizations, and we have disclosed to you all communications from the service
organizations relating to noncompliance at the service organizations.

We have reviewed the drafts of the financial statements and related notes and believe the amounts
are properly presented based on the books and records of YCIPTA. We hereby take responsibility for
the financial statements and authorize Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. to issue the reports in final form.

We understand that at the conclusion of the audit Heinfeld, Meech & Co, P.C. will submit to the Board
of Directors a communication to those charged with governance that will include a copy of this
representation letter and a copy of the engagement letter.

S~

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director Date
Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority

03/ 29/ 2025

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14" Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.qov, Web: www.ycipta.az.qov

March 29, 2025

Honorable Chairman and Members of the Board
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Yuma, Arizona, 85365

Honorable Members,

In accordance with state and local statutes, the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) hereby submits the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for
the year ending June 30, 2024. Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of
internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should
not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C., Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified (“clean”)
opinion on YCIPTA'’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.
MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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PROFILE OF THE YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY

Under Arizona Revised Statutes - Title 28 Transportation, an intergovernmental public transportation
authority (IPTA) may be organized in any county in Arizona with a population of 200,000 persons or
less.

YCIPTA is an IPTA formed on December 13, 2010 by the Yuma County Board of Supervisors to
administer, plan, operate and maintain public transit services throughout Yuma County. YCIPTA
members include Yuma County, the cities of Yuma, San Luis, Somerton, Town of Wellton, Arizona
Western College /Northern Arizona University, and the Cocopah and Quechan Indian Tribes. On
September 21, 2010, the Town of Wellton and City of Somerton passed a resolution petitioning the
Yuma County Board of Supervisors to form the IPTA.

On October 3 and 20, 2010, respectively, the Cities of San Luis and Yuma passed resolutions asking
Yuma County to form the IPTA. On December 13, 2010, the Yuma County Board of Supervisors
held a public hearing and approved the formation of the IPTA. On January 24, 2011, YCIPTA held
its first Board of Directors meeting.

On August 16, 2011, Arizona Western College petitioned YCIPTA to become the seventh member
agency of the IPTA and was approved by the YCIPTA Board of Directors on August 28, 2011. On
October 17, 2011, Cocopah Indian Tribe petitioned YCIPTA to become the eighth member agency
of the IPTA and was approved by the YCIPTA Board of Directors on October 28, 2011.

On April 12, 2012, Quechan Indian Tribe petitioned YCIPTA to become the ninth member agency of
the IPTA and was approved by the YCIPTA Board of Directors on April 23, 2012. A resolution was
passed by the Yuma Metropolitan Planning Organization (YMPO) Executive Board on August 11,
2011 with the intent of transitioning transit operations to YCIPTA in the future. The YMPO Executive
Director and YCIPTA Transit Director signed a transfer of services and assets agreement on
June 26, 2012, and, as of July 1, 2012, YMPO transferred the ownership and operation of the transit
system to YCIPTA.

YCIPTA provides transit service under the YCAT brand, including fixed route, vanpool and YCAT
OnCall demand-response bus service throughout Yuma County including the cities of Yuma, San
Luis, and Somerton, the Town of Wellton, the Cocopah Indian Reservation, and the Fort Yuma-
Quechan Indian Reservation, including the Census-Designated Place (CDP) of Winterhaven across
the Colorado River in eastern Imperial County, California. YCAT also serves the unincorporated
communities of Gadsden, Fortuna Foothills and Ligurta.

The YCIPTA Board of Directors sets overall policy and direction for the transit system. Nine (9) Board
Members represent Yuma County, each municipality, the local community college district, a
university and the two Indian tribes. Each member entity receives one vote on the Board of Directors.
When financial contributions are discussed, the Board of Directors opted for a weighted voting
structure to ensure that members that pay more into the system have fair representation.

In January 2012, YCAT routes were substantially restructured. This restructuring has been
successful in nearly doubling YCAT ridership by the end of 2012.
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With the Yuma Regional Transit Study completed by Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT)
and Yuma County, Five Year Short Range Transit Plan completed by ADOT, YCIPTA and YMPO,
the formation of YCIPTA, the addition of funding from Arizona Western College, University, Quechan
Indian Tribe and the restoration of funding from the City of Yuma, YCAT is looking to the future for
stability and the opportunity to continue to improve services within southwestern Yuma and eastern
Imperial Counties. YCIPTA is a focused transportation authority with one goal - to operate transit
services efficiently and effectively. New innovations such as a future transit tax, a new maintenance
and operations facility and the development of the Yuma Multimodal Transit Center will help grow
public transit to new heights in the next several years.

Both demand-response and fixed-route service is administered and funded by YCIPTA and its
member agencies, and operated by a private contractor. YCAT Vanpool is operated by Enterprise
Leasing of Phoenix, LLC and they own the vans used for this program. YCAT OnCall is operated by
the same private contractor as the fixed route service. YCIPTA owns all vehicles for fixed-route and
demand response service and leases the East 14th Street maintenance facility.

YCAT’s success has also prompted local Native American tribes—the Quechan Tribe of the Fort
Yuma Indian Reservation, and the Cocopah Indian Tribe, respectively—to fund and contract with
YCIPTA to provide shuttles tailored to tribal needs which are also open to the general public.

Services to the Fortuna Foothills area east of the City of Yuma along I-8, and on Yellow Route 95
from the Mexican border at San Luis, via Somerton and the City of Yuma are continued to run service
in order to reduce crowding and improve system on-time performance. Turquoise Route 10 has
continued to run to provide intercity service three days per week between Yuma, Fort Yuma Indian
Reservation, Winterhaven and El Centro, California.

A Transit Director manages YCIPTA. Support staff includes Two Office Clerks, One Office Specialist,
Transit Operations Manager, and Financial Services Operations Manager. YCIPTA has agreements
with Yuma County for financial services and Treasurer.

In addition to fixed route bus and ADA paratransit service, YCIPTA also sponsors and administers
the YCAT Vanpool Program. YCAT Vanpool provides branded vehicles to groups of 7-15 commuters
qualifying for the service. Vans must originate, terminate, or travel through Yuma County to be
eligible for up to a $300 per month subsidy per vanpool; the vehicles must be branded as YCAT
Vanpool through Commute with Enterprise, LLC. The vehicles and subsidies are available on a first
come, first served basis. As of June 30, 2024, there are 35 vehicles in the vanpool.



Motto
See Where It Takes You!

The Mission of YCIPTA describes the main functions of YCIPTA and its role within the Yuma
County community. The Mission gives the overall “charge” and purpose of the organization.
All YCIPTA activities relate to one or more aspects of the mission statement:

Mission Statement
The Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority is committed to
providing mobility solutions that make essential connections possible.

Vision Statement
The Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority vision is to be recognized as
the leader in mobility solutions that empower and connect the community.



ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s service area centers in
Yuma, county seat of Yuma County. Yuma County’s population as of the 2020 U.S. Census was
208,994. There are three incorporated cities and one incorporated town in the County. Together
these four make up 68% of the County’s population.

Primary industry in Yuma County is agriculture, military and tourism. Undisputedly, agriculture is the
number one industry for Yuma County. Agriculture produces an estimated $3.4 billion a year into
the Yuma economy. This is due to our rich soil (sediments deposited by the Colorado River over
millions of years), progressive farmers (who explore and utilize the latest theories and technology in
their fields), sufficient labor (highly skilled and motivated work force) and senior rights to irrigation
water.

Lettuce is the largest winter crop in Yuma, but there are over 175 different crops grown in the Yuma
area year-round. The list includes alfalfa, Bermuda grass seed, cotton, dates, lemons, melons and
wheat. Desert Durum accounts for 95% of wheat grown in Yuma County, and about two-thirds of
that is exported to Italy for use in making premium pastas.

The United States Military has been in Yuma for over 150 years. Today, it is the second largest
industry in Yuma County as we are home to the Yuma Proving Ground and the Marine Corps Air
Station — Yuma.

The U.S. Army first came to the area in 1851, and established Fort Yuma on Indian Hill. The
installation overlooked the Yuma Crossing, the aptly named low spot in the Colorado River, and it
allowed for the establishment of the town site of what would later become Yuma. In 1864 the Army
put up the Quartermaster Depot along the river. From here the Army oversaw the distribution of
supplies to soldiers in the West.

MCAS has the F-35, and Yuma Proving Ground is also having the opening of the U.S. Army John
F. Kennedy Special Warfare Center and School. The purpose of this facility will allow special forces
troops to train for air operations requiring free falls from airplanes. The facility opened in January of
2014 and, at 75 feet tall, is the largest in the world.

The winter months see the Yuma County population grow by over 76,000 as the winter visitors make
their annual trek to Yuma and contribute $452M in economic activity.

At the peak of our winter visitor season, February, it is estimated we have about 76,000
visitors. February is the peak of the season as many places on the continent are experiencing some
of their coldest temperatures. The City of Yuma's year-round population is about 96,349. Adding
another 76,000 is a big seasonal influx of people to the community.

On Interstate 8, more than 9 million vehicles per year (24,657 per day) pass through Yuma. At San
Luis, another 2.6 million autos and 46,000 commercial vehicles cross annually. Shoppers from
Mexico contribute approximately $3.5 billion annually to Yuma County. Yuma's annual sales
continually show healthy increases compared to other parts of Arizona and the nation.



Yuma County is one of the original four counties designated by the First Territorial Legislature. Much
of Yuma County is desert land surrounded by rugged mountains. The valley regions, however,
contain an abundance of arable land, which is irrigated with Colorado River water. These valley
areas have some of the most fertile soils in the world, having received silt and mineral deposits from
Colorado and Gila River floods until the rivers were tamed by an intricate series of dams and canals.
Yuma County is bordered by California on the West and Mexico on the South. Living close to the
Mexican border offers a great opportunity to experience multi-cultural and international business
opportunities.

The Greater Yuma Economic Development Council states that Yuma County has a labor force of
91,097 people, with an unemployment rate of 11.9% in June of 2024.

A recent study, titled "Yuma County, Arizona: Growing Business At The Border," locates Yuma
strategically in the Desert Pacific Region. This market area reaches Las Vegas to the North,
Albuquerque and El Paso to the East, Mazatlan to the South and takes in the entire Baja peninsula
North to Los Angeles, California.



MAJOR INITIATIVES

o Assisted City of Yuma with Hotel Del Sol Multi Model Transit Center.

e Received one small cutaway with 5311 funding.

¢ Continued partnerships with Portable, Practical, Educational Preparation, Inc., AZTEC High
School, Western Arizona Council of Governments, Yuma Union High School District, Yuma
County Department of Economic Security, Yuma Private Industry Council (YPIC), Arizona
Western College (AWC), University of Arizona (UofA), Imperial County Transportation
Commission (ICTC), Quechan Indian Tribe, Cocopah Indian Tribe, and all other member
entities.
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S
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Transit Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority (YCIPTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes
to the financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority,
as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the YCIPTA'’s
ability to continue as a going concern for one year beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

85



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. In performing an audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the YCIPTA's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the YCIPTA’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and net pension liability information, as listed in the table of
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

66



Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the Introductory Section and Statistical Section but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements
do not cover the other information and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on other work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the
other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 29,
2025, on our consideration of Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Aeineld Meech & Co.VC

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C.
Scottsdale, Arizona
March 29, 2025
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) is intended to provide an overview of
YCIPTA’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Net position, as reported in the statement of net position, totaled $5.3 million as of June 30,
2024. Total net position decreased by $1.1 million, which is attributable to a decrease in
federal revenue and a decrease in the local match revenue during the fiscal year.

e Forthe year ended June 30, 2024, the combined fare box recovery ratio (the measure of the
ability to recover operating costs through fare revenue) for YCIPTA was seven percent. This
calculation is only fare collection and does not include funds received for local match.

o Fixed Route ridership decreased by 17 percent, by approximately 58,629 riders, this year.
Overall operating revenues increased by $90,915 (24 percent) during the year. Operating
expenses decreased by $265,659 (four percent) during the year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to YCIPTA’s financial
statements. YCIPTA's financial statements comprise two components: 1) financial statements and,
2) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required supplementary information in
addition to the financial statements themselves.

Financial statements. The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad view
of YCIPTA's finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of YCIPTA'’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
outflows and inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
YCIPTA is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing
how the net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. earned but unused vacation leave).

The statement of cash flows presents information showing the sources and uses of cash related to
operating activities, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing activities and
investing activities. In addition, the statement provides information about significant non-cash
investing, capital and financing activities.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Since YCIPTA'’s primary function is to provide transportation services to Yuma County citizens and
recover costs through Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grants and passenger fares, the financial
statements include only business-type activities.

Notes to basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial
position. In the case of YCIPTA, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources by $5.3 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of YCIPTA’s net position reflect the investment in capital assets; there is no
related debt. Most of the investment in capital assets is comprised of buses, vans, and other vehicles
totaling $5.4 million. Other investment in capital assets includes land, furniture and equipment,
leasehold improvements, and infrastructure, totaling $1.1 million.

e The balance in unrestricted net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 was a deficit
of $1.2, a decrease of $380,963 which was attributable to operations for the year ended
June 30, 2024. Investments in capital assets decreased by $740,089 which is attributable to
depreciation expense during the year ending June 30, 2024.

Capital and operating grants were a major portion of the revenue used to fund transit operations for
the fiscal year.

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Current and other assets $ 1,138,717 $ 1,337,070
Capital assets (net) 6,500,191 7,240,280
Net other postemployment benefit
plan assets 13,498
Total assets 7,652,406 8,577,350
Deferred Outflows of Resources 56,686 64,585
Long-term Liabilities 394,827 457,022
Other Liabilities 1,937,574 1,732,294
Total liabilities 2,332,401 2,189,316
Deferred Inflows of Resources 67,897 36,271
Net position:
Investments in Capital Assets 6,500,191 7,240,280
Restricted 13,498
Unrestricted (1,204,895) (823,932)
Total net position $ 5308794 $ 6,416,348
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The following are significant current year transactions that had an impact on the change in net

position.

e Operating revenues increased $90,915 due to increase in ridership.
e Federal revenues decreased $324,881 as a result of conservative spending of eligible

expenses.

Revenues:
Operating revenues:
Fare box revenues
Non-operating revenues:
Federal revenue
Member fees

Other non-operating revenue

Total revenues

Expenses:
Operating expenses
Nonoperating expense
Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net position

Net position:
Beginning of year

End of the year
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Fiscal Year

Ended

Fiscal Year

Ended

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

$ 475862 $ 384,947
3,287,440 3,612,321
921,744 877,851
1,352,260 2,625,819
6,037,306 7,500,938
6,836,289 7,101,948
308,571 440,439
7,144,860 7,542,387
(1,107,554) (41,449)
6,416,348 6,457,797

$ 5308794 §$ 6,416,348




YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. YCIPTA'’s investment in capital assets net of depreciation as of June 30, 2024
amount to $6.5 million. This investment in capital assets includes land, leasehold improvements,
infrastructure (bus stops), vehicles, and furniture and equipment.

CAPITAL CAPITAL
ASSETS ASSETS
(Net of (Net of
depreciation) depreciation)
2024 2023

Land $ 363,880 $ 363,880
Leasehold improvements 33,298 35,519
Infrastructure 399,475 423,566
Vehicles 5,433,922 6,049,619
Furniture and equipment 269,616 367,696
Total $ 6,500,191 $ 7,240,280

Additional information on YCIPTA’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

Long-term debt — As of June 30, 2024, the only long-term debt reported was for pension liability.
Additional information on YCIPTA'’s long term debt can be found in Note 6 to the financial
statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS

YCIPTA receives 54 percent of its revenues from the Federal Transit Administration either
directly, passed through the Arizona Department of Transportation, or passed through the
Quechan Tribe, 12 percent of its revenues from member organizations, and two percent from
contributions of other public entities.

Today, YCAT funding is solely dependent on the ability that its member agencies can contribute.
This can result in radical changes to service delivery on a fiscal year-by-fiscal year basis. YCAT
today is only able to afford 32,500 revenue vehicle service hours (RVSH) for the fixed route
system and 3,000 RVSH for YCAT OnCall. Any growth would require additional contributions from
member agencies, which at this time is not available.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS (CONTINUED)

Bipartisan Infrastructure Law provides $5.6 million in Federal funding to the Yuma Urbanized Area
and requires a local match in order to use this funding. YCIPTA only has enough capacity to
provide approximately $1.5 million in local match funding at this time unless additional eligible
local match is found.

Yuma County's population as of the 2020 U.S. Census was 208,994. There are three incorporated
cities and one incorporated town in the County. Together these four make up 68 percent of the
County's population.

Primary industry in Yuma County is agriculture, miliary and tourism. Agriculture is the number one
industry for Yuma County. Agriculture produces an estimated $3.4 billion a year into the Yuma
economy. At the peak of our winter visitor season, February, it is estimated we have about 76,000
visitors. February is the peak of the season as many places on the continent are experiencing
some of their coldest temperatures. The City of Yuma's year-round population is about 97,883.
Adding another 76,000 is a big seasonal influx of people to the community.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of YCIPTA's finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. If you have questions concerning any of this
information provided in this report or need additional financial information, visit our website at
www.ycipta.az.gov or direct inquires to Shelly Kreger, Transit Director, 2715 E. 14th Street.,
Yuma, AZ 85365.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts Receivable
Total Current Assets
Other Current Assets
Other Current Assets
Total Other Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Net other postemployment benefit plan assets
Land
Leasehold improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles
Furniture and equipment

Total property and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total Property and Equipment - Net
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTLFOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension plan items

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences payable

Total Current Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities:
Net pension liability

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension plan items

NET POSITION
Investments in capital assets
Restricted for other postemployment benefit plan assets
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

i

$

176,664
961,553

1,138,217

500

500

13,498
363,880
75,512
621,554
9,062,154
1,077,388

11,200,488
(4,700,297)

6,500,191

7,652,406

56,686

1,836,988
8,274
80,125
12,187

1,937,574

394,827

2,332,401

67,897

6,500,191
13,498
(1,204,895)

$

5,308,794




YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUE
Charges for services:
Farebox revenues $ 475,862

Total Operating Revenue 475,862

OPERATING EXPENSES

Contracted operating services 4,292,010
Non-vehicle repairs 38,190
Vehicles parts and maintenance 74,063
Occupancy 52,800
Other Transit Services 125,400
Administrative and general 688,195
Depreciation 860,577
Fuel costs 575,414
Other operating expenses 129,640
Total Operating Expenses 6,836,289
Operating Income/(Loss) (6,360,427)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant revenue

Federal Transit Administration 3,287,440
Member fees 921,744
Contributions From Public Entities 939,531
Investment income 5,057
Greyhound Commissions 4,642
Other revenues 115,030
Pension expense (20,571)
In-kind revenue 288,000
In-kind expense (288,000)

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 5,252,873

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (1,107,554)

Change in net position (1,107,554)
Net position - beginning 6,416,348
Net position - ending $ 5,308,794

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to vendors, contractors and suppliers
Payments to employees
NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Public support funds received

NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investments

NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO

NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided/(used) by operating activities
Depreciation
(Increase)/Decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Increase/(Decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences

NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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$ 460,643
(5,285,392)
(565,165)

(5,389,914)

5,596,540

5,596,540

5,057

5,057

91,195

85,469

$ 176,664

$  (6,360,427)

860,577
(15,219)
146,289

(7,685)
(13,449)

$  (5,389,914)




YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority (YCIPTA) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The more significant of the YCIPTA’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

YCIPTA is a political subdivision of the State of Arizona which was established on
December 13, 2010 to manage the operations of the regional public transit system. Prior to
the transition of transit operations from Yuma Metropolitan Planning Organization (YMPO) on
July 1, 2012, financial activity for YCIPTA was presented on the financial statements of the
YMPO.

The membership of the Board of Directors consists of eight members representing Yuma
County, the Cities of Yuma, Somerton and San Luis, the Town of Wellton, Arizona Western
College, Quechan Indian Tribe, and the Cocopah Indian Tribe. The Board of Directors acts as
policy body to administer, plan, operate and maintain public transit services throughout Yuma
County. The Board of Directors also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval
of the annual budget and the establishment of a system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The financial reporting entity consists of a single political subdivision because it has a
separately governing body that is appointed by its member agencies, is legally separate, and
is fiscally independent of its member agencies.

B. Financial Statements

The Financial Statements (i.e. the statement of net position, the statement of revenues
expenses and changes in net position and the statement of cash flows) report information on
all of the activities of the primary government.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The Financial Statements are reported using the current economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues and gains are recorded when earned
and expenses and losses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements have been met. Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal
period. Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by YCIPTA before it has legal
claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to meeting all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider.

YCIPTA receives operating revenues primarily from passenger fares and advertising
revenues. Non-operating revenues include Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grants,
member dues from local cities, towns and tribes, and contributions from other public entities.

YCIPTA operating expenses are primarily contractor costs for operating the transit services
along with administrative cost. Non-operating expenses would include Greyhound ticket sales
and pension expense.

D. Cash and cash equivalents

YCIPTA’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

E. Investment Income

Investment income is composed of interest on bank deposits.

F. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by YCIPTA as assets with an initial, individual cost in excess of
$5,000 and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the asset. Intangible right-to use assets are amortized over the shorter of the
lease/subscription term or the underlying asset’s useful life. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Furniture and equipment 3 - 10 years
Leasehold improvements 5-30 years
Vehicles 5 years
Infrastructure 30 years

YCIPTA uses the “full-month” convention where a full month’s depreciation is recorded in the
month of acquisition, and equal amounts are recorded in each subsequent month over the life
of the asset.

G. Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position may report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows
of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position may report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

H. Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is YCIPTA’s policy
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
I. Compensated Absences

All regular full-time employees of YCIPTA are entitled to paid time off for vacation; personal
or family iliness or injury; medical and dental appointments; personal business; and holidays
not observed by YCIPTA. Annual leave begins to accrue immediately on employment
according to the following schedule:

0 to 1 year 24 days per year
2 to 3 years 25 days per year
4 to 9 years 28 days per year
10 to 15 years 31 days per year
16 to 20 years 32 days per year
20 and up 33 days per year
Transit Director 33 days per year

Part-time employees accrue a proportional amount of paid time off, depending on whether
they are one-quarter time, one-half time, or three-quarters time. Employees who terminate will
be paid for unused paid time off up to 400 hours for benefit eligible employees and 200 hours
for employees who are not benefit eligible, at the termination of employment and at the
employee’s current rate of pay.

The current and long-term liabilities, including related benefits, for accumulated vacation and
sick leave are reported on the statement of net position.

J. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
K. Pensions

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, related deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources and pension expense, information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plan. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

NOTE 2 - DEFICIT NET POSITION

At year-end, there was $1,204,895 of deficit net position. The deficit arose because of
operations during the year and prior year. Management expects the deficit to be resolved by
contributions received in the subsequent fiscal year.

NOTE 3 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash — The captions and amounts of cash and investments on the Statement of Net
Position consist of the following:

Petty cash $ 350
Cash in bank 40,039
Total $ 40,389

Custodial Credit Risk. For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, YCIPTA'’s deposits may not be returned to YCIPTA. YCIPTA currently does not have
a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2024, the carrying amount of the
YCIPTA’s deposits was $40,039, and the bank balance was $61,210. The YCIPTA'’s deposits
were entirely covered by Federal depository insurance.

The Yuma County Treasurer pursues a portfolio management strategy giving highest priority
to a) safety of principal; b) sufficient liquidity to meet the needs of the county, its subdivisions
and school districts; and then c) return on investments. To accomplish this the Yuma County
Treasurer invests with the Arizona State Treasurer.

84



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 3 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments must be made in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes ARS 35-323 which
specifies a maximum maturity of five years and lists specific eligible investments. Currently,
all county funds are pooled and invested to anticipate the cash flow needs for the county.

The Yuma County Treasurer's pool is an external investment pool with no regulatory
oversight. The pool is not required to register (and is not registered) with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The fair value of each participant’s position in the Yuma County
Treasury investment pool approximates the value of the participants’ shares in the pool and
the participants” shares are not identified with specific investments. Participants in the pool
are not required to categorized the value of shares in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.

At year end YCIPTA'’s investments consisted of the following:

Average Maturities Fair Value
County Treasurer’s investment pool 0.09 years $ 136,275

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES - ACCOUNTS AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL

Accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due from other governments including
amounts relating to grants, member dues, and contributions from public entities. As of
June 30, 2024, accounts receivable totaled $961,553, of which receivables from other
governments consisted of the following:

Due from federal government $ 931,904
Due from other entities 29,649
Total Accounts Receivable Due $ 961,553

Management considers all accounts receivable at June 30, 2024, to be fully collectible;
therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts was recorded.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increase Decrease Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 363,880 $ $ $ 363,880
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 363,880 363,880
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Leasehold improvements 75,512 75,512

Infrastructure 621,554 621,554

Vehicles 8,941,666 120,488 9,062,154

Furniture and equipment 1,077,388 1,077,388

Total capital assets, being depreciated 10,716,120 120,488 10,836,608
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Leasehold improvements (39,993) (2,221) (42,214)

Infrastructure (197,988) (24,091) (222,079)

Vehicles (2,892,047) (736,185) (3,628,232)

Furniture and equipment (709,692) (98,080) (807,772)

Total accumulated depreciation (3,839,720) (860,577) (4,700,297)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 6,876,400 (740,089) 6,136,311
Total capital assets, net $7,240,280 $(740,089) $ $ 6,500,191

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year was $860,577.

NOTE 6 — CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions  Reductions Balance One Year

Net pension liability $ 457,022 % $ 62,195 $ 394,827 $
Compensated absences payable 25,636 34,006 47,455 12,187 12,187
Total $ 482,658 $ 34,006 $ 109,650 $ 407,014 $ 12,187
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 7 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

YCIPTA received 54 percent of its revenues from the Federal Transit Administration either
directly, passed through the Arizona Department of Transportation, or passed through
Quechan Tribe, 12 percent of its revenues from dues paid by its member organizations, and
two percent of its revenues in contributions from public entities.

NOTE 8 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority was unable to obtain insurance for workers’ health at a cost considered to be
economically justifiable. Therefore, the Authority joined the Yuma Area Benefits Consortium,
together with other entities in the area. The consortium is a public entity risk pool that accounts
for the risk financing of certain benefits and losses, for its four member entities. The Authority
pays annual premiums based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and
current year claims. The consortium uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to
large losses.

YCIPTA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

YCIPTA carried commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including property and liability,
and workers’ compensation insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 9 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description. YCIPTA has been contributing to a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan; a cost-sharing multiple employers defined benefit health care (OPEB)
plan; and a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit long-term disability (OPEB) plan,
all of which are administered by the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). The ASRS
(through its Retirement Fund) provides retirement (i.e., pension), death, and survivor benefits;
the Health Benefit Supplement Fund provides health insurance premium benefits (i.e., a
monthly subsidy); and the Long-Term Disability Fund provides long-term disability benefits.
Benefits are established by state statute. The System is governed by the Arizona State
Retirement System Board according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2
and 2.1.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 9 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Aggregate Amounts. At June 30, 2024, the District reported the following aggregate amounts
related to pensions and OPEB for all plans to which it contributes:

Pension OPEB Total
Net assets $ $ 13,498 $ 13,498
Net liability 394,827 394,827
Deferred outflows of resources 54,738 1,948 56,686
Deferred inflows of resources 61,993 5,904 67,897
Expense 19,190 1,381 20,571
Contributions 45,816 419 46,235

The System issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. The most recent report is available on its website at
WWW.azasrs.qov.

The ASRS has determined that YCIPTA and its employees qualify to participate in the System.

The ASRS OPEB plans are not further disclosed because of their relative insignificance to
the Authority’s financial statements.

Benefits Provided. The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement,
long-term disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefit terms. Retirement
benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit
as follows:

Retirement Initial
Membership Date:

Before On or After

July 1, 2011 July 1, 2011

Sum of years and age equals 30 years age 55

Years of Service and age 80 25 years age 60

requirement to receive 10 years age 62 10 years age 62

benefit 5 years age 50* 5 years age 50*
Any years age 65 Any years age 65

Final average salary is Highest 36 months of last 120 Highest 60 months
based on months of last 120 months

Benefit percent per year

. 2.1% t0 2.3% 2.1% of 2.3%
of service

*with actuarially reduced benefits
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 9 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013 are
subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earnings.
Members with a membership date on or after September 13, 2013, are not eligible for cost-
of-living adjustments. Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’'s death. For retired
members, the survivor benefits are determined by the retirement benefit options chosen. For
all other members, the beneficiary is entitled to the member’s account balance that includes
the member’s contributions and employer’s contributions, plus interest earned.

Contributions. In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine
active member and employer contribution requirements. The combined active member and
employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. For the
current fiscal year, active ASRS members were required by statute to contribute at the
actuarially determined rate of 12.29 percent (12.14 percent for retirement and 0.15 percent
for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered payroll and the Authority was required
by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 12.29 percent (12.03 percent for
retirement, 0.11 percent for health insurance premium benefit, and 0.15 percent for long-term
disability) of the active member's annual covered payroll. YCIPTA’s contributions to the
pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2024 were $45,816.

Pension Liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023. The total
liability used to calculate the net liability was determined using update procedures to roll
forward the total liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, to the measurement
date of June 30, 2023. YCIPTA'’s proportion of the net liability was based on YCIPTA’s actual
contributions to the applicable plan relative to the total of all participating employers’
contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2023.

At June 30, 2024, YCIPTA reported the following amounts for its proportionate share of the
pension plan net liability. In addition, at June 30, 2023, YCIPTA'’s percentage proportion for
the plan and the related change from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2022 was:

Net District Increase
Liability % Proportion (Decrease)
$ 394,827 0.002 (0.000)

86



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 9 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources. Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority had deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to the net pension liability of retirement benefits. Certain changes in the net
pension liability are recognized as pension expense over a period of time rather than the year
of occurrence. The YCIPTA’s pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2024, was
$19,190 and reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 8,922 $
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings 13,969
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 48,024
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 45,816
Total $ 54,738 $ 61,993

The deferred outflows resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent
to the measurement date as reported in the table above will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30:
2025 $ (33,787)

2026 (32,603)
2027 15,055
2028 (1,736)
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 9 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions. The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total
pension liability are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2022
Actuarial roll forward date June 30, 2023
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Investment rate of return 7.0%

Inflation 2.3%

Projected salary increases 2.9-8.4%

Permanent base increases Included

Mortality rates 2017 SRA Scale U-MP

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022, valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the five-year period ended June 30, 2020. The purpose of
the experience study was to review actual experience in relation to the actuarial assumptions
in effect. The ASRS Board adopted the experience study recommended changes which were
applied to the June 30, 2020, actuarial valuation.

The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS pension plan investments was determined to
be 7.0 percent using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage.

The ASRS’ estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long Term
Expected
Target Asset Geometric Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Public equity 44% 3.50%
Credit 23% 5.90%
Interest rate sensitive 6% 1.50%
Private equity 10% 6.70%
Real Estate 17% 5.90%

Total 100%
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 9 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENFITS (CONTINUED)

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0 percent.
The projections of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from participating employers will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based
on the funding policy of the ASRS Board, which establishes the contractually required rate
under Arizona statute. Based on those assumptions, the Retirement Fund’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all the projected future benefit payments of
current members. Therefore, the long term expected rate of return on investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the participating
employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.0%, as well as what the employers’ net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using the discount rate that is 1% lower (6.5%)
or 1% higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
Rate 6.0% 7.0% 8.0%
Net liability $ 591,393 $ 394,827 $ 230,926

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued ASRS financial report. The report is
available on the ASRS website at www.azasrs.gov.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

ARIZONA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2024 2023 2022 2021

Measurement date June 30, 2023  June 30, 2022  June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
YCIPTA's proportion of the net pension

(assets) liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
YCIPTA's proportionate share of the net

pension (assets) liability $ 394,827 $ 457,022 $ 399,443 $ 526,726
YCIPTA's covered payroll $ 318859 $ 346,353 $ 348279 $ 341,118
District's proportionate share of the net

pension (assets) liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 123.82% 131.95% 114.69% 154.41%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 75.47% 74.26% 78.58% 69.33%

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
ARIZONA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2024 2023 2022 2021

Actuarially determined contribution $ 45,816 $ 38,008 $ 41,597 $ 40,574
Contributions in relation to the

actuarially determined contribution 45,816 38,008 41,597 40,574
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $
YCIPTA's covered payroll $ 380,848 $ 318,859 $ 346,353 $ 348,279
Contributions as a percentage

of covered payroll 12.03% 11.92% 12.01% 11.65%

See accompanying notes to this schedule.
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2020

June 30, 2019

0.00%

019

June 30, 2018

201

June 30, 2017

2017

June 30, 2016

201

June 30, 2015

2015

June 30, 2014

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
$ 407433 $ 429552 § 392,567 $§ 401,911 $ 325962 $ 282,041
$ 282,630 $ 294,706 $ 245575  $ 233,092 $ 188,779  $ 170,710
144.16% 145.76% 159.86% 172.43% 172.67% 165.22%
73.24% 73.40% 69.92% 67.06% 68.35% 69.49%
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
$ 39,058 $ 31,598 § 32123 § 26,473 $ 25290 $ 20,558
39,058 31,598 32,123 26,473 25,290 20,558
$ $ $ $ $ $
$ 341,118 § 282,630 $ 294,706  $ 245575  $ 233,092 $ 188,779
11.45% 11.18% 10.90% 10.78% 10.85% 10.89%
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

Actuarial Assumptions for Valuations Performed. The information presented in the
required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the
dates indicated, which is the most recent actuarial valuations. The actuarial assumptions used
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Factors that Affect Trends. The actuarial assumptions related to funding were selected on
the basis of an experience study which was performed for the five-year period ending
June 30, 2020. The purpose of the experience study was to review actual experience in
relation to the actuarial assumptions in effect. The ASRS Board adopted the experience study
which recommended changes and those changes were effective as of the June 30, 2020
actuarial valuation.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s annual
comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what
the information in the financial statements, notes disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the authority’s overall financial health.

INDEX Page
Financial Trends 44-47

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
authority’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 48-49
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the authority’s most
significant local revenue consideration, namely ridership and fare box revenue.

Debt Capacity
YCIPTA does not have any outstanding debt so therefore debt capacity information is
not presented.

Demographic and Economic Information 50-51
These schedules offer demographic and economic data to help the reader understand
the environment within which the authority’s financial activities take place.

Operation Information 52-53
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand

how the information in the authority’s financial report relates to the services the authority
provides and the activities it performs
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNEMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net Investment in

Fiscal Year Capital Assets Restricted Unrestricted Total Net Assets
2014-2015 S 875,695 S (493,787) $ 381,908
2015-2016 S 1,587,710 S (183,652) S 1,404,058
2016-2017 S 1,424,242 S (553,536) $ 870,706
2017-2018 S 2,540,226 S (470,082) $ 2,070,144
2018-2019 S 5,050,514 S (1,432,207) S 3,618,307
2019-2020 S 4,851,944 S (1,651,994) S 3,199,950
2020-2021 S 5,096,992 S (1,260,507) S 3,836,485
2021-2022 S 8,092,614 S (1,634,817) $ 6,457,797
2022-2023 S 7,240,280 S (823,932) S 6,416,348
2023-2024 S 6,500,191 $ 13,498 S (1,204,895) S 5,308,794
NET POSITION

$9,000,000

$8,000,000

$7,000,000

$6,000,000

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

> - 1
$(1,000,000) H ]
$(2,000,000)
Net Investment in Restricted Unrestricted
Capital Assets
H2013-2014 N 2014-2015 m 2015-2016 N 2016-2017
m2017-2018 m2018-2019 1 2019-2020 1 2020-2021

Source:  Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Financial Statements.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNEMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Capital
Fiscal Year Expenses Revenues Contributions Changes in Net Position
2014-2015 § 4,640,485 S 4,110,896 S - $ (529,589)
2015-2016 §$ 4,640,445 S 5,358,547 S - S 718,102
2016-2017 S 4,884,051 $ 4,350,699 S - S (533,352)
2017-2018 S 4,137,303 $ 5,336,741 $ - S 1,199,439
2018-2019 S 5,394,260 $ 6,942,422 S - S 1,548,162
2019-2020 S 5,675,745 $ 5,257,388 $ - S (418,357)
2020-2021 S 5,797,108 S 6,433,972 $ - S 636,864
2021-2022 S 6,226,040 S 8,847,023 S - S 2,620,983
2022-2023 S 7,542,387 S 7,500,938 S - S (41,449)
2023-2024 S 7,144,860 S 6,037,306 S - S (1,107,554)
Change in Net Postion
$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
5
$(1,000,000)
$(2,000,000)

Expenses Revenues Capital
Contributions

H2014-2015 m 2015-2016 = 2016-2017 m 2017-2018 = 2018-2019
M 2019-2020 = 2020-2021 ™ 2021-2022 1 2022-2023 m 2023-2024

Changes in Net
Position

Source:

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Financial Statements.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNEMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

REVENUES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Other Other Non-
Operating Intergovern- Operating
Fiscal Year Fares Revenue  mental Revenue Revenue Total Revenue
2014-2015 $ 382,255 $ 28,496 S 2,649,376 $ 1,050,769 $ 4,110,896
2015-2016 $ 397,011 $ 2599 S 3,541,584 $ 1,393,956 $ 5,358,547
2016-2017 S 427,761 S 20,598 S 2,377,363 S 1,524,977 S 4,350,699
2017-2018 § 423,467 S 3,967 §$ 3,405,036 S 1,504,272 S 5,336,742
2018-2019 S 417,874 S 794 S 5,162,444 $ 1,361,309 $ 6,942,421
2019-2020 $ 326,188 $ 189 $ 3,718,541 $ 1,212,470 $ 5,257,388
2020-2021 S 26,600 S - S 5,349,553 S 1,057,819 S 6,433,972
2021-2022 §$ 344,484 S - S 7,299,733 S 1,202,806 $ 8,847,023
2022-2023 $ 384,947 S - S 3,612,321 $ 3,503,670 $ 7,500,938
2023-2024 S 475,862 $ - S 3,287,440 S 2,274,004 S 6,037,306
Revenues

$8,000,000

$7,000,000

$6,000,000

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

g, BB e

Fares

Other Operating

Intergovern-mental

Revenue Revenue

M 2014-2015 m 2015-2016 ™ 2016-2017 m 2017-2018 ™ 2018-2019

M 2019-2020 = 2020-2021 = 2021-2022 © 2022-2023 m 2023-2024

Other Non-Operating
Revenue

Source: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Financial Statements.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNEMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
EXPENSES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Purchased Other Transit Administrative Other
Fiscal Year Transportation Services and General Fuel Operating Depreciation Total Expenses
2014-2015 S 2,333,624 S 209,943 S 964,498 S 438,335 S 545,933 S 148,152 $ 4,640,485
2015-2016  $ 2,792,949 $ 121,767 S 460,973 $ 309,173 § 249,404 S 143,907 $ 4,078,173
2016-2017 S 2,871,253 $ 136,200 $ 499,163 $ 335,283 S 828,570 S 213,582 $ 4,884,051
2017-2018 $ 2,052,558 S 120,900 S 593,424 $ 378616 S 788679 S 203,126 $ 4,137,303
2018-2019 S 3,418,108 $ 116,880 $ 519,996 S 419,550 $ 540,617 S 379,109 S 5,394,260
2019-2020 $ 3,443,453 $ 125294 $ 784,041 $ 338,790 $ 440,655 S 543,511 $ 5,675,744
2020-2021 S 3,832,988 S 121,261 S 732,430 S 281,664 S 242,883 S 585,882 $ 5,797,108
2021-2022 $ 3,754,047 S 116,748 S 646,109 $ 581,034 $ 436,734 S 691,368 $ 6,226,040
2022-2023 S 3,916,716 S 706,751 S 611,903 S 635,483 S 819,200 S 852,334 S 7,542,387
2023-2024 $ 4,292,010 $ 599,024 $ 688,195 $ 575,414 § 129,640 S 860,577 S 7,144,860
EXPENSES
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000 -
$5,000,000 -
$4,000,000 B
$3,000,000 =
$2,000,000 B
$1,000,000 I =
$-
Purchased Other Transit ~ Administrative Fuel Other Depreciation  Total Expenses
Transportation Services and General Operating
H2014-2015 m 2015-2016 = 2016-2017 m 2017-2018 m 2018-2019
W 2019-2020 ™ 2020-2021 ™ 2021-2022 © 2022-2023 ™ 2023-2024
Source: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Financial Statements.
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNEMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMPARISON OF SYSTEM RIDERSHIP DATA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024  Increase or
Route Ridership Ridership Ridership Ridership Ridership Ridership Ridership Ridership Ridership Ridership  (Decrease)
1 4,026
2 44,655 44,306 35,059 37,448 33,783 31,608 18,080 23,406 33,077 36,157 54.5%
3 9,066 8,773 8,185 6,428 7,796 6,856 5,235 5,787 328 - -100.0%
4 64,267 58,639 27,954 47,336 57,815 50,603 25,530 38,014 49,331 59,533 56.6%
5 16,793 17,042 16,609 18,744 17,158 16,752 13,433 11,849 14,183 15,962 34.7%
6 46,107 44,675 44,652 40,635 43,260 38,091 16,484 20,558 22,778 32,374 57.5%
6A
7
8 1,832 3,552 3,115 2,869 3,637 3,071 2,015 2,395 3,005 3,297 37.7%
8A
9 16,248 15,587 12,487 11,825 15,743 10,963 2,080 6,354 9,845 12,901 103.0%
10 5,597 3,070 1,793 1,641 1,884 2,317 2,230 1,599 1,849 2,523 57.8%
13 202
95 241,263 225,402 230,642 263,088 239,474 216,066 146,513 174,091 209,478 246,099 41.4%
Other 5,467 3,709 3,023 1,327 3,358 1,039 1 11 7,379 6,941  63000.0%
DAR
YCAT OnCall 6,124 7,505 8,680 7,933 8,364 7,471 6,489 7,291 6,607 7,180 -1.5%
YCAT Vanpool 28,372 65,434 74,190 67,622 67,922 68,423 58,784 62,709 74,705 73,704 17.5%
490,019 497,694 466,389 506,896 500,194 453,260 296,874 354,064 432,565 496,671 40.3%
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNEMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

FARE STRUCTURE
Basic Discount
e Seniors ages 65+
e Ages 19-64 o Persons w/ Disabilities
Description « Youth ages 5-18

without student ID ¢ Medicare card holders

o ADA Certified
o Students ages 5-18

One Way $2.00 $1.00
Day YCATPass $5.00 $2.50
Route Deviation $2.00 Cash Only / No Pass / No
(3,5, 6A, 8, 10) ’ Discounts
Rte10 Turquoise $2.00 Cash Only / No Pass / No
One Way ) Discounts
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNEMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
YUMA COUNTY TOP TEN CIVILIAN EMPLOYES

Employer

. Marine Air Corps Station Yuma
. U.S Army Proving Grounds (Yuma Proving Ground)

Yuma Regional Medical Center
Yuma Elementary District Yuma #1
Yuma County

. Date Pac, LLC

. TRAX International

. City of Yuma

. US Border Patrol

. Yuma Union High School District

Source: greateryuma.o

Activity
Military
Military
Health Care
Education
Government
Manufacturing
Government
Government
Government
Education

Employees
4,723
2,510
1,991
1,400
1,336
1,275
1,262
1,200
1,000
1,000

According to the Yuma Marine Corps Air Station, they are the busiest air station in the Marine
Corps and the third busiest in the Navel service. The MCAS Air Station currently hosts 100 units
form U.S. and NATO forces totaling 14,000 personnel. There are also over 2,000 Yuma County
residents who work at the Yuma Proving Ground several hundred military personnel assigned to the Yuma Proving Ground,
including about several thousands of annual visitors who stay
anywhere from a week up to six months depending on the activity.

Community

Yuma County - including cities

City of Yuma

City of San Luis

City of Somerton

Town of Wellton*

Fortuna Foothills

Cocopabh Indian Reserve

Arizona

Quechan (Fort Yuma) Indian Res., CA**
Winterhaven, CA Census Designated Place

* U.S. Census Buereau & World Poplulation review

2024 Population
207,318
97,883
36,081
14,477
2,482
29,297
922
7,285,370

2,698

192

Area (square miles)
5,519
121
34
7
29
40
10
113,998

% of Population
2%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
0%

Population Density
(persons/square mile)

38
809
1,058
1,989
86
729
92
64



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNEMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS
LAST NINE YEARS

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

VEHICLES

NEXTbus Tracking System

Admin/Utility Vehicles

El Dorado EZ Rider

New Flyers

Dodge Caravan

Amerivan

Braunn Entervan

Chevy Uplander

Chevy El Dorado

Ford E350

Gillig

El Dorado MST II 5

ARBOC Freightliner

Starcraft Allstar CutAway
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Source: YCIPTA Annual Inventory Listing
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YCAT Existing Network

Metwork Coverage, August 2013 Yuma Area
Jan 2014, El Centra, Fixed Route Bus Stops only
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Yuma County Incorporated and Unincorporated areas

195



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

196



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item
FS-2024-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s Response to Finding
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Yuma
County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s response to the finding identified in
our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Yuma
County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s response was not subjected to the
other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Neinfeld Meeth & Co.VC

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C.
Scottsdale, Arizona
March 29, 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and
Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Required by the Uniform Guidance

Board of Directors
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to the audit in the OMB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2024. Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority complied, in all
material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
(Government Auditing Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s federal programs.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error and
express an opinion on Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance, we
o exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
¢ Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
e Obtain an understanding of Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required
to be reported in accordance with Uniform Guidance and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2024-001 and 2024-002. Our
opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on Yuma
County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s responses to the noncompliance
findings identified in our compliance audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s
responses were not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we did
identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2024-001 and 2024-002 to be material
weaknesses.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on Yuma
County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority’s responses to the internal control over
compliance findings identified in our compliance audit described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority’s responses were not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance
We have audited the financial statements of Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated
March 29, 2025, which contained an unmodified opinion on those basic financial statements. Our
audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform
Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
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The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Aeintedd Meech & Co.VC

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C.
Scottsdale, Arizona
March 29, 2025
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YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Fiscal Period 7/1/2023 - 6/30/2024

Additional Identifying Number
Federal Award Name of Funder Assigned By Funder Total Amount Federal
CFDA Identification Pass-Through Pass-Through Provided to Federal Program Cluster Cluster
Federal Awarding Agency/Program Title Number (Optional) Entity Entity Sub-| i Total Name Total
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
HIGHWAY PLANNING AND

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 QUECHAN INDIAN TRIBE A13AP00091 / A16A900184 $142,784 $142,784 CONSTRUCTION CLUSTER 142,784
FEDERAL TRANSIT_FORMULA GRANTS 20.507 AZ-90-X132 $41,032 $49,714 $2,090,467 FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER 52,090,467
FEDERAL TRANSIT_FORMULA GRANTS 20.507 AZ-90-X143 $830 $2,090,467 FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER 52,090,467
FEDERAL TRANSIT_FORMULA GRANTS 20.507 AZ-2018-003-0C $75,840 $2,090,467 FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER 52,090,467
FEDERAL TRANSIT_FORMULA GRANTS 20.507 AZ-2019-010-00 $3,172 $2,090,467 FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER 52,090,467
FEDERAL TRANSIT_FORMULA GRANTS 20.507 AZ-2019-035 $167,694 $2,090,467 FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER 52,090,467
FEDERAL TRANSIT_FORMULA GRANTS 20.507 AZ-2019-036 $13,427 $2,090,467 FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER 52,090,467
FEDERAL TRANSIT_FORMULA GRANTS 20.507 AZ-2023-001-00 $1,779,790 $2,090,467 FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER 52,090,467

FORMULA GRANTS FOR RURAL AREAS AND TRIBAL TRANSIT

PROGRAM 20.509 QUECHAN INDIAN TRIBE CA-2022-231-00 534,573 $1,231,546 N/A 51,231,546

FORMULA GRANTS FOR RURAL AREAS AND TRIBAL TRANSIT ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF

PROGRAM 20.509 TRANSPORTATION GRT-22-0008862-T 51,196,973 $1,231,546 N/A 51,231,546
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

$41,032 $3,464,797

TOTAL EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS $41,032 $3,464,797

Please Note:

Italicized award lines indicate pass-through funding

The accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of the schedule.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Significant Accounting Policies Used in Preparing the SEFA

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the federal
grant activity of Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority under programs
of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2024. The information in the Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of YCIPTA, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net position or cash flows of YCIPTA. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost
principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Any negative amounts shown on the Schedule
represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as
expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where
available.

10% De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate

The auditee did not use the de minimis indirect cost rate.

Assistance Listing Numbers

The program titles and Assistance Listing numbers were obtained from the federal or pass-
through grantor or through sam.gov. If the three-digit Assistance Listing extension is unknown,
there is a U followed by a two-digit number in the Assistance Listing extension to identify one or
more Federal award lines from that program. The first Federal program with an unknown three-

digit extension is indicated with UO1 for all award lines associated with that program, the second
is U02, etc.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Summary of Auditor’s Results:

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified: No
e Material weakness(es) identified: Yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted: No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified: No
e Material weakness(es) identified: Yes
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with §200.516 of
Uniform Guidance: Yes

Identification of major programs:

Assistance Listing Numbers Name of Federal Programs or Clusters
20.507 Federal Transit Cluster
20.509 Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal

Transit Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee: No

Findings Related to Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards: Yes

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards: Yes

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings required to be reported: Yes
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Findings Related to Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Finding Number: FS-2024-001

Repeat Finding: No

Type of Finding: Material Weakness

Description: Internal Controls Over Accounting Records

Finding 2024-001 which is discussed in detail in Findings and Questioned Costs Related to

Federal Awards were considered to be applicable to Findings Related to Financial Statements
Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards

Finding Number: 2024-001

Repeat Finding: No

Program Name/Assistance Listing Title: Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transit
Program

Assistance Listing Number: 20.509

Federal Agency: Arizona Department of Transportation

Federal Award Number: GRT-22-0008862-T

Pass-Through Agency: Arizona Department of Transportation

Questioned Costs: N/A

Type of Finding: Noncompliance, Material Weakness

Compliance Requirement: Other

Criteria

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls over its accounting
records. Further, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.510, the entity is responsible for the design and
implementation of controls over the preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards (SEFA) each fiscal year. Additionally, 2 CFR 200.303 requires the entity to establish and
maintain internal control over the federal awards that provides reasonable assurance that the
entity is managing the federal awards in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of federal awards.

Condition

YCIPTA was awarded a match for the purchase of a new bus. YCIPTA did not follow federal
regulations regarding federal revenue transactions to ensure all activities were properly recorded
and processed.

Cause
YCIPTA has not implemented sufficient controls over accounting transactions.

Effect

YCIPTA was not in compliance with federal regulations and guidelines. The transaction was
unique and not part of the normal federal program operations. It was not known that the
transaction was subject to Single Audit. Audit adjustments were required to properly reflect the
activity.

Context
YCIPTA received a federal match for the purchase of a new bus. The following errors were noted
in the recording of the bus:
e A bus valued at $120,488 was not recorded in the general ledger.
e The corresponding depreciation expense (and accumulated depreciation) of $20,081 was
not recorded in the general ledger.
e Capital outlay of $12,753 was recorded in error in the general ledger
e Federal revenue of $107,735 for the match was not recorded in the general ledger or on
the SEFA for the fiscal year.

The sample was not intended to be, and was not, a statistically valid sample.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards

Finding Number: 2024-001

Recommendation
YCIPTA should improve internal controls and adhere to federal regulations. All applicable
transactions and activity should be included in the SEFA for the fiscal year in which the

expenditures occurred.

Views of Responsible Officials
See Corrective Action Plan.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards

Finding Number: 2024-002
Repeat Finding: Yes — 2023-001, 2022-001

Assistance
Program Names/Assistance Listing Listing Federal Award Questioned
Titles: Numbers: Numbers: Costs:
Federal Transit Cluster 20.507 AZ-90-X132, N/A
AZ-90-X-143,
AZ-2018-003-00,
AZ-2019-010-00,
AZ-2019-035,
AZ-2019-036
AZ-2023-001-00
Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Trial 20.509 CA-2022-231-00, N/A
Transit Program GRT-22-0008862-T

Federal Agency: Department of Transportation

Pass-Through Agencies: Arizona Department of Transportation, Quechan Indian Tribe
Type of Finding: Noncompliance, Material Weakness

Compliance Requirement: Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment

Criteria

Non-federal entities other than states, including those operating federal programs as
subrecipients of states, must follow the procurement standards set out at 2 CFR §§200.318
through 200.326. They must use their own documented procurement procedures, which reflect
applicable State and local laws and regulations, provided that the procurements conform to
applicable federal statutes and the procurement requirements identified in 2 CFR part 200. The
Board adopted a Policies and Procedures Manual that requires formal bid procedures for
purchases over $100,000.

Condition
The Authority did not follow its Board adopted Policies and Procedures Manual or federal
regulations.

Cause
YCIPTA was operating under an expired contract and did not follow Board-adopted policies.

Effect

YCIPTA was not in compliance with the Board adopted Policies and Procedures Manual and
federal regulations.

Context

For one purchase in excess of the federal procurement threshold of $250,000, YCIPTA did not
perform a sealed bid of proposal.

The sample was not intended to be, and was not, a statistically valid sample.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards

Finding Number: 2024-002

Recommendation

YCIPTA should adhere to its Board adopted Policies and Procedures Manual. When purchases

are expected to be in excess of $100,000, formal procurement methods should be used to ensure
the best pricing possible.

Views Of Responsible Officials
See Corrective Action Plan.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Yo

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14" Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.qgov, Web: www.ycipta.az.qov

March 29, 2025

To Whom It May Concern:

The accompanying Corrective Action Plan has been prepared as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Uniform Guidance. The name of the contact person responsible for
corrective action, the planned corrective action, and the anticipated completion date for each
finding included in the current year's Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs have been
provided.

In addition, we have also prepared the accompanying Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
which includes the status of audit findings reported in the prior year’s audit.

Sincerely,

Shelly Kreger
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Findings Related to Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Finding Number: FS-2024-001

Contact Person: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Anticipated Completion Date: April 15, 2025

Planned Corrective Action: YCIPTA will make the proper journal entries within Quickbooks to
reflect the bus purchase properly.

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards

Finding Number: 2024-001

Program Name/Assistance Listing Title: Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transit
Program

Assistance Listing Number: 20.509

Contact Person: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Anticipated Completion Date: April 15, 2025

Planned Corrective Action: YCIPTA will make the proper journal entries within QuickBooks to

reflect the bus purchase properly.

Finding Number: 2024-002

Assistance
Program Names/Assistance Listing Titles: Listing Numbers:
Federal Transit Cluster 20.507
Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Trial Transit Program 20.509

Contact Person: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Anticipated Completion Date: July 1, 2024

Planned Corrective Action: Due to going out twice with this RFP during FY23/24 in order to try
and receive more sealed bids the contract did not get awarded until July 1, 2024 falling into the
FY24/25.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Status of Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards

Finding Number: 2023-001, 2022-001

Assistance
Program Names/Assistance Listing Titles: Listing Numbers:
Federal Transit Cluster

20.507
Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Trial Transit Program 20.509

Status: Partially corrected. See current year finding 2024-002.

Planned Corrective Action: YCIPTA procured a fuel contract according to Board adopted policies
during this FY2024, contract signed July 1, 2024.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14 Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycat.az.qov

April 21, 2025

Discussion and Action ltem 2

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board of
Directors
From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the FTA Triennial Review FY2023-2025
Preliminary Findings
Requested Action: N/A

Background and Summary: Every three years the Federal Transit Administration conducts
a Triennial Review as required by 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 and other requirements.

The in person review was held on April 8 & 9, 2025. During this review there were
deficiencies in 8 out of the 23 areas reviewed as attached to this staff report. This is only
the preliminary list. Staff will be working on closing out most of these before the Draft
report is sent in approximately 21 days. Any remaining deficiencies will be cleared up
before the due dates listed.

Financial Impacts: N/A

Budgeted: N/A

Recommended Motion: N/A

Legal Counsel Review: N/A

Attachments: FTA Triennial Review FY2023-2025 Preliminary Findings

For information regarding this agenda item, please contact Shelly Kreger via email to:
skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for submission:

(g hor—

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Summary of Preliminary Findings

Recipient: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA)

Review Area Finding 2N v el Corr-ectlve Response Due Date Closed
Code Description Action(s) Date(s)
1. Legal ND
2. Financial D F6-2  |Outstanding The recipient 60 days
Management and annual audit must submit
Capacity deficiencies procedures and a
schedule for
resolving Single
Audit findings.
The recipient
must report on
the status of
addressing audit
findings in its
progress reports.
3. Technical Capacity D TC- Incorrect FFR  |The recipient 60 days
— Award AM2-1 |reporting must submit
Management revised reports

that include the
missing/corrected
information
and/or address
FTA comments
and submit to the
FTA regional
office procedures
for including all
required
information in
future reports. If
the recipient is no
longer able to
submit the
reports
electronically, it
must upload hard
copies of the
reports to TrAMS
and notify the
regional office
when the revised
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Review Area

Finding

Deficiency Code(s)

Code

Description

Corrective
Action(s)

Response Due
Date(s)

Date Closed

reports are
submitted.

Technical Capacity
— Program
Management and
Subrecipient
Oversight

PgM3-1

Missing written
agreements

The recipient
must submit
procedures for
entering into
award document
with each
subrecipient prior
to the
expenditure of
Federal funds on
a local project
and
documentation
that it has
executed award
document with
each
subrecipient.

30 days

Technical Capacity
— Project
Management

ND

Transit Asset
Management

TAM®6-3

Performance
targets not
approved by the
accountable
executive

The recipient
must submit
evidence that the
accountable
executive
approved the
current year’s
performance
targets.

30 days

7.

Satisfactory
Continuing
Control

SCC1-3

Property reports
not submitted as
required

The recipient
must prepare and
submit real
property reports
along with
procedures for
preparing and
submitting such
reports timely.

30 days

SCC8-3

Inadequate
equipment
records

The recipient
must submit
updated
equipment

30 days
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Review Area

Finding

Deficiency Code(s)

Code

Description

Corrective
Action(s)

Response Due
Date(s)

Date Closed

records which
include all of the
required
information.

8.

Maintenance

ND

9.

Procurement

P4-1

Responsibility
determination
deficiencies

For any contracts
where the
recipient was
found to have
failed to verify
that the
contractor was
responsible, the
recipient must
verify the
responsibility of
contractors. The
recipient must
submit
documentation of
an implemented
process to make
adequate
responsibility
determinations
prior to award of
a contract.

60 days

P8-6

Lacking required
justification(s)
and
documentation
for single-bid
award(s)

The recipient
must submit
evidence of an
implemented
policy to ensure
that future single
bid procurements
are properly
documented.

60 days

P11-1

Missing FTA
clauses

The recipient
must submit
revised
procurement
procedures that
ensure review of
the FTA Master
Agreement and 2

60 days
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Review Area

Finding

Deficiency Code(s)

Code

Description

Corrective
Action(s)

Response Due
Date(s)

Date Closed

CFR Part 200
annually to
confirm the
inclusion of all
FTA-required
third party
contract clauses
through use of a
clause checklist
or other
mechanism.

10. Disadvantaged
Business
Enterprise

DBE2-1

Inadequate
designation of
DBE Officer

The recipient
must submit
evidence of
corrective actions
implemented to
designate DBE
responsibilities
properly.

30 days

DBE3-1

DBE goal
submitted late

The recipient
must implement
a procedure and
revise its DBE
program to
ensure that
future goal
submissions will
be submitted by
August 1 of the
applicable year
(or by some other
date designated
by FTA). The
recipient must
upload the
revised program
to TrAMS and
notify the FTA
RCRO when
completed.

60 days

DBE5-1

DBE uniform
reports contain
inaccuracies
and/or are

The recipient
must submit
corrected reports
cited in the
deficiency

90 days
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Review Area

Finding

Deficiency Code(s)

Code

Description

Corrective
Action(s)

Response Due
Date(s)

Date Closed

missing required
information

description, along
with
implemented
procedures for
correctly
completing
Uniform Reports
of DBE Awards or
Commitments
and Payments.
The recipient
must submit a
revised DBE
Program to
correctly describe
how it will
implement
accurate
reporting.

DBE6-1

DBE goal
achievement
analysis and
corrective action
plan not
completed

The recipient
must submit the
required analyses
for the missing
year(s), along
with a written
process to ensure
future shortfall
analyses are
completed.

90 days

11.

Title VI

ND

12.

Americans with
Disabilities Act
(ADA) — General

ADA-
GENS8-1

Stop
announcement/
vehicle ID
mechanisms
deficiency

The recipient
must submit
documentation
that it has
implemented
procedures to
identify routes at
fixed-route stops
served by more
than one route
and evidence that
it monitors
implementation

30 days
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Deficiency Code(s)

Corrective

Response Due

23. Cybersecurity

Review Area Finding . Date Closed
Code Description Action(s) Date(s)
of these
procedures.
13. ADA- ND
Complementary
Paratransit
14. Equal ND
Employment
Opportunity
15. School Bus ND
16. Charter Bus ND
17. Drug-Free ND
Workplace
18. Drug and Alcohol ND
Program
19. Section 5307 ND
Program
Requirements
20. Section 5310 NA
Program
Requirements
21. Section 5311 NA
Program
Requirements
22. Public D PTASP |ASP missing (1) The recipient 14 days
Transportation 31 required must develop a
Agency Safety element(s) plan for
Plan submitting an
updated ASP that
addresses all the
required
elements.
(2) The recipient 90 days
must submit an
updated ASP that
addresses all the
required
elements.
NA

The metrics used to evaluate whether a recipient is meeting the requirements for each of the areas reviewed are:
Deficient (D)/Not Deficient (ND)/Not Applicable (NA)
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14 Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycat.az.qov
April 21, 2025

DA3
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

To: Board of Directors

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the Fourth Amendment — IGA —
YCIPTA — City of Yuma Grant Passthrough Agreement.

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the Fourth
Amendment — IGA — YCIPTA - City of Yuma Grant Passthrough Agreement

Background and Summary: YCIPTA and the City are parties to the Grant Pass
Through Intergovernmental Agreement with an effective date of February 26, 2015
(“IGA”) pursuant to which YCIPTA passed funds from Grant Numbers AZ-90-X132
(“Grant X132") and AZ-90-X127 (“Grant X127”) to the City to cover final design and
pre-construction costs associated with the rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol for use
as a multimodal transportation center.

By approving this fourth amendment serves two purposes. The first is to extend
the agreement period of performance end date in both grants to September 30,
2026. This extension will allow the City to hopefully fully expend all funds in these
two grants by that time. Secondly, this will also close out one of the Triennial
Review findings as the current agreement has expired on September 30, 2024.

Once approved this will be sent to the City for Council approval.

Financial Impacts: N/A

Budgeted: N/A

Recommended Motion: Staff recommends that the Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors
approve the Fourth Amendment — IGA — YCITA — City of Yuma Grant Passthrough
Agreement.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Legal Counsel Review: Yes

Attachments: Fourth Amendment — IGA — YCIPTA — City of Yuma Grant
Passthrough Agreement

For information regarding this agenda item, please contact Shelly Kreger via
email to: skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for submission:

(g PHer—

Shelly Kreger
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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FOURTH AMENDMENT TO
GRANT PASS THROUGH INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
and
CITY OF YUMA
FOR FEDERAL TRANSIT GRANT FUNDING

This Fourth Amendment to the Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement
(“Amendment”) is effective as of 1% of October, 2024 (“Effective Date™), between the Yuma
County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority, a political subdivision of the State of
Arizona (“YCIPTA”), and City of Yuma, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “City”).
YCIPTA and the City are sometimes referred to herein individually as the “Party” and
collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and the City are parties to the Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental
Agreement with an effective date of February 26, 2015 (“IGA”) pursuant to which YCIPTA
passed funds from Grant Numbers AZ-90-X132 (“Grant X132”) and AZ-90-X127 (“Grant
X127”) to the City to pay for final design and pre-construction costs associated with the
rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol for use as a multimodal transportation center;

WHEREAS, Grant X132 was awarded by the Federal Transit Authority on August 18, 2014 to
YCIPTA and the City of Yuma as a Subrecipent;

WHEREAS, Grant X127 was awarded by the Federal Transit Authority on August 13, 2015 to
YCIPTA and the City of Yuma as a Subrecipent;

WHEREAS, the term of the IGA was extended by the First Amendment to the IGA through
August 31, 2018;

WHEREAS, the term of the IGA was extended by the Second Amendment to the IGA through
December 31, 2023;

WHEREAS, the term of the IGA was extended by the Third Amendment to the IGA through
September 30, 2024;

WHEREAS, grant funds remain that may be used toward the improvement and rehabilitation of
the Hotel Del Sol; and,

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and the City desire an additional extension to the term of the IGA to
allow the City to use remaining grant funds for the improvement and rehabilitation of the Hotel

Del Sol.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby mutually agree to the following:
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1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals are acknowledged by the Parties to besubstantially
true and correct, and hereby incorporated as agreements of the Parties.

2. Identifiers. Pursuant to the requirements of the awarded Grants, the Parties acknowledge
that the City of Yuma, as a Subreciepent to the federal grants, has obtained GN4ZBTUNCNS3 as
its Unique Entity Identifier (UEI).

3. Term. Section 2 of the IGA, titled “Term of Agreement,” as amended by the First
Amendment and again amended by the Second Amendment and Third Amendment, is hereby
deleted and replaced with the following:

Term of Agreement. The Term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
expire on September 30, 2026.

4, Federal Grant Closeout. An additional Section 22 shall be added to the IGA, and titled
“Federal Grant Closeout”, the language of such section shall be as follows:

Federal Grant Closeout. Once all line items in a grant are complete and all ECHO
drawdowns are made, a final FFR and MPR is submitted in the TrAMS along with a final
budget. Closeout shall take place no later 30 days after than the end of the quarter in
which the last drawdown on the grant is made.

a. YCIPTA shall initiate the closeout electronically, by submitting the following
information in TrAMS, as part of the closeout process:

(1) Confirmation that activities are complete and if closeout Amendment
will deobligate any unexpended balance of federal assistance;

(2) A list of property acquired or improved in support of the Award that
will continue to be within the purview of the Grant or Cooperative
Agreement;

(3) A final, reconciled Award Budget reflecting actual Project costs by
scope code and activity, reflecting adjustments to the federal and non-
federal amounts;

(4) A final FFR, consistent with the reconciled Award Budget (e.g.,
deobligation);

(5) A final narrative MPR indicating the actual completion date of each
ALI and a discussion of each ALI contained in the final Award Budget;
and

(6) Any other documentation or reports required as part of the terms and
conditions of the Grant or Cooperative Agreement.

5. Nature of Amendment. Except for the modifications set forth in this Amendment, the
IGA remains in full force and effect.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Third Amendment as of the date first
set forth above.

CITY OF YUMA YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

John D. Simonton, Shelly Kreger, CCTM
City of Yuma - Administrator Transit Director
ATTEST

Lynda L. Bushong
City Clerk

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT APPROVAL

The foregoing Third Amendment has, prior to its execution, been submitted to the attorney for
each Party, who has determined that the intergovernmental agreement is in proper form and is
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of this state to such Party.

Dated this 1st day of October, 2024

By:
Elizabeth A. Punpayuk
YCIPTA Attorney

Dated this 1st day of October, 2024

By:
Richard W. Files
Yuma City Attorney

Fourth Amendment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma Grant Pass Through IGA for Federal Transit Funding, Page 3 of 3
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14 Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycat.az.qov

April 21, 2025

Discussion and Action ltem 4

To:

From:
Subject:

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Board of Directors

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Discussion and or action regarding DRAFT YCIPTA FY 2025-2026
Operating Budget

Requested Action: Staff is recommending the Yuma County Intergovernmental

Public Transportation Authority Board of Directors adopt the FYF202025-2026
Operating budget.

Background and Summary: Attach to this staff report is a DRAFT FY2024/25

Operating Budget showing the estimated expenses for and the expected revenues
to operate YCIPTA and the transit system for FY2025/26. Estimated revenues are
$6,642,224 and estimated expenses are at $6,642,224 showing a balanced

budget.

The Capital budget will be presented later as it is still under development.

The significant aspects of the proposed operating budget of $6,642,224 are:

Revenues

The fully allocated YCIPTA rate is $173.43 per revenue hour which is
an increase of $7.94 per hour from last year due to increase in union
negotiations for salaries and employee benefits, 5% increase in
contractor costs.

Fares are projected to be $460,200 system wide.

Staff is projecting revenues/expenses of $6,241,168 that would be
required to operate the transit system.

FTA Section 5311 funds for operating are projected to be
$1,828,200. FTA Section 5311 funds are to fund services outside the
Yuma Urbanized Area. This funding primarily funds Wellton, Blue

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton

Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,
Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Route 5 (within Arizona), Purple Route 6A, Gold Route 8, Silver Route
9, Turquoise Route 10 (within Arizona) and Yellow Route 95. This
translates to 48.11% of YCAT service miles attributed to the rural
area. 10.77% is attributed to the tribal transit grants received by the
Quechan and Cocopah Indian Tribes.

e FTA Section 5307 will continue to fund transit services that are wholly
within the Yuma Urbanized Area. This primarily funds Orange Route
2/2A, Green Route 4/4A, and YCAT OnCall for the remainder 41.12%.

e The FY23-24 Operating budget requires match revenues of $2,637,419.

e The budget assumes $322,248 as in-kind match revenues from
Greyhound Intercity Routes, Quechan Indian Tribe parking lot fees.

e Advertising revenues for the FY25-26 for signed contracts is
$441,110.

e The budget assumes $2,581,038 in cash contributions from local
government, public entities, fare revenues and tribal contributions.

Expenses

e Full staffing of seven full time employees with employee benéefits is
anticipated.

e Pay increases are budgeted this fiscal year for a 5% for COLA and merit.

e Transit services total hourly operating cost increases from $118.80 per
hour to $124.74 for YCAT transit services and $62.55 to $65.68 for
YCAT OnCall.

e The marketing budget has remained the same for printing at $25,000
and Advertising at $50,000.

e Alincrease in vehicle repair and maintenance for engine and transmission
rebuilds/replacements on older vehicles.

e Increase to $88,000 in Software updates for Genfare annual contract,
annual subscriptions for software.
Fuel costs is budgeted at $650,000.
Increase in contract costs due to contracts with Kim Joyce and Assoc.

Financial Impacts:

Budgeted: Yes

Recommended  Motion: Staff is recommending the Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board of Directors adopt the
FY2025/2026 Operating budget.

Legal Counsel Review: No

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

141



Attachments: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
DRAFT FY2025/20260perating Budget

For information regarding this agenda item, please contact Shelly Kreger via email
to: skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for submission:

r—

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

DRAFT FY 2026 BUDGET

DESCRIPTION
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
40000 - Intergovernmental
40700 - Miscellaneous Revenues
40799-3 - Advertising Sales
40799-4 - Greyhound Commisions - YCIPTA
40799-5 - Interest
40799-6 - Miscellaneous Revenues
rotal 40700 - Miscellaneous Revenues
Moved $244,766 to
Capital Budget for
40900-2 - Local Transit Dues match
MOU YUHSD Vista,
YPIC, Arizona
40900-4 - Contributions Public Entities Western College
Cocopah/Quechan
40900-5 - Tribal Route Income Dues/Route

Total 40900 - Local Funding

41101 - State Grants

41101-1 - ADOT 5311

Total 41101 - State Grants

41300 - Federal Grant Revenue

41399-1 - FTA 5307

Total 41300 - Federal Grant Revenue

Total 40000 - Intergovernmental

41000 - Charges for Service

40100 - Fare Revenue

40101 - YCAT Fares

40190 - On Call Fares

Total 40100 - Fare Revenue

Total 41000 - Charges for Service

INKIND REVENUE

Total Income

Gross Profit
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

DRAFT FY 2026 BUDGET

DESCRIPTION

Expense

50100 - Salaries and Wages

50102 - Regular Salaries and Wage

Total 50100 - Salaries and Wages

50200 - Fringe Benefits

50201 - FICA- SS & Medicare

50202 - ASRS

50203 - Health Insurance

YABC increased
rates for FY24-25

50204 - FUTA

50205 - Life Insurance

50207 - State Unemployment

50208 - Workers Compensation Ins

Total 50200 - Fringe Benefits

50300 - Services

50301-1 - ADA Paratransit

5% increase

50301-2 - Accounting & Audit

50301-3 - Vanpool Subsidy

$300 stipend for 35
vehicles $10500 per
month

50302 - Advertising

$30,000 Big Cat -
$20,000 Advertising

50303-1 - Legal Services

50303-2 - Cash Handel/Payroll Processing

50303-3 - IT Support/Web Development

50305-0 - Bus Contractor

50305-1 - Contract Costs

50305-2 - Equipment Maintenance

50305-3 - Office Equip Repair

50305-4 - Vehicle Repair & Maintance

V&M for engines,
transmissions, and
other large parts
that are required
YCIPTA to pay

50305-5 - Building Repairs & Maintance

50305-6 - Communications/Radio Service

City of Yuma Radio
Maintenance
Agreement has been
purchased for this
Fiscal year.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

DRAFT FY 2026 BUDGET

DESCRIPTION

50305-7 - Grounds Keeping/Pest Control

50305-8 - Software Updates/Maintenance

Genfare/QB/Other

50307 - Security Services annual contracts

Total 50300 - Services

50400 - Materials and Supplies

50401 - Fuel, Oil, Lubricants

50499-1 - Office Supplies

50499-2 - Postage

50499-3 - Printing

50499-4 - Misc Materials & Supplies

Total 50400 - Materials and Supplies

50500 - Utilities

50501 - Electricty

50502-1 - Refuse Disposal

50502-2 - Water - Offices

50502-3 - Water-Land

Total 50500 - Utilities

50600 - Casualty and Liability Insuranc

50608-1 - Gen Liab Insurance

50608-2 - Prof. Liability Insurance

50608-3 - Automobile Insurance

50608-4 - Property Insurance

Total 50600 - Casualty and Liability Insuranc

50900 - Miscellaneous Expenses

50901 - Memberships/Dues/Subcriptions

50902 - Travel Expenses

50906 - Finance Charges/Penalties

50999-1 - License and Permits

50999-2 - Training/Education

50999-3 - Other Misc Expense

50999-5 - Telephone/Internet

Total 50900 - Miscellaneous Expenses
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

DRAFT FY 2026 BUDGET

FY 2025 Budget DESCRIPTION

51200 - Leases and Rentals

51212-1 - Building Lease 52,800
51212-2 - Leases Rental Equipment 350
51212-4 - Lease 12,000
Total 51200 - Leases and Rentals 65,150
Total Operating Expense 6,152,668
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Total match/local funding needed for FY 2026 Budget

2,762,361.28

Cash Match Contribution

Local Funding Government Entities Match Contribution

Local Funding Contribution of Public Entities

Fare Revenues

misc revenues/advertising
Tribal Contributions for Ops
Total Cash Match Contribution

In Kind Contribution
Greyhound In Kind Contrubution

Inkind for Advertisment in Shelters
Quechan Tribe Parking Lot Contribtution

Total Match Contributions

983,605.00
120,460.00

454,200.00
452,110.00
780,453.71

2,790,828.71

300,000.00

22,248.00

322,248.00

3,113,076.71

Should be Zero/ neg is a deficit - positive is over

350,715.43

147
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5307 Fed Portion 5307 Match 5311 Fed Portion 5311 Match
RATPDEV Breakdown Needed Portion Needed  Needed Portion Needed Other TOTALS
1,423,661.93 1,051,742.05 1,182,945.47 929,457.15 4,587,806.60
Expenses Breakdown Funding 373,660.07 357,216.69 432,139.93 239,033.31 9,656.47
SALARIES/FRINGE BENEFITS 215,292.00 122,515.32 210,961.15 52,740.29 S 601,508.76
|TOTALS 2,012,613.99 1,531,474.06 1,826,046.55 1,221,230.75 6,601,021.83 |

This is what is needed for funding

5307 Fed Portion
5311 Fed Portion

2,012,613.99
1,826,046.55
3,838,660.55

5307 Match Portion
5311 Match Portion

1,531,474.06
1,221,230.75
2,752,704.81
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14 Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycat.az.qov

April 22, 2025

Discussion and Action ltem 5

To:
of Directors

From:

Subject:

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
Discussion and or action regarding the increase in Member Entity Dues

for FY2025-2026.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental

Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the increase

in Member Entity Dues for FY2025-2026.

Background and Summary: Staff is requesting Board approval on a 5% increase

in member entity dues for FY2025-2026. There is no increase in AWC due to the
agreement that enroliment would be reviewed every two years which will be next

fiscal year.

Current dues

Current Amount

of Annual New dues for
Contributions FY25/26 (5% Amount of
Governmental Entity FY24-25 increase) increase
Yuma County $302,605.81 $317,736.10 $15,130.29
City of Yuma $390,555.87 $410,083.66 $19,527.79
Town of Wellton $28,316.00 $29,731.80 $1,415.80
City of San Luis $137,815.96 $144.706.75 $6,890.80
City of Somerton $58,425.60 $61,346.88 $2,921.28
Quechan Indian Tribe $11,239.78 $11,801.77 $561.99
Cocopah Indian Tribe $80,124.79 $84,131.03 $4,006.24
AWC $78,210.00 $78,210.00 $0.00
Total $1,087,293.82 | $1,137,748.01 | $50,454.19

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Financial Impacts: Total increase of member entity dues of $50,454.19.

Budgeted: N/A

Recommended Motion: Staff recommends that the Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors to
approve the increase in Member Entity Dues for FY2025-2026.

Legal Counsel Review: N/A

Attachments: N/A

For information regarding this agenda item, please contact Shelly Kreger via email
to: skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for submission:

(g hor—

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14 Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycat.az.qov

April 22, 2025
Discussion and Action ltem 6

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board
of Directors

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding a Corporate Authorization Resolution
for 15t Bank Yuma

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve and sign the
Corporate Authorization Resolution for 15t Bank Yuma

Background and Summary: Staff is updating the authorized check signers for the
four accounts held at 15t Bank Yuma. We are removing Marcela Garcia and
replacing her with Carol Perez. It is required that two signers sign each check that
is issued. It has been our practice to have three check signers in the event one
person is out of the office. After contacting the bank to get all of the paperwork
prepared to remove Marcela Garcia and add Carol Perez the bank noticed that the
Corporate Authorization Resolution had not been updated in many years.

The Resolution needs to be Board approved and signed by the Secretary and one
other officer. Once this is completed all paperwork will be sent back to the bank
and our accounts will be updated.

Financial Impacts: N/A

Budgeted: N/A

Recommended Motion: Staff recommends that the Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors
approve and sign the Corporate Authorization Resolution for 15t Bank Yuma

Legal Counsel Review: N/A

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
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Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Attachments: The Resolution will be handed out at the meeting due to the
signatures that have been filled out and should not be made to be publicly
accessible.

For information regarding this agenda item, please contact Shelly Kreger via email
to: skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for submission:

(g hr—

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
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Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.qgov, Web: www.ycat.az.qov

April 17, 2025
Brand Ambassador Report

Wrapped buses began rolling the streets during the first week of April. The advertisers are
pleased, and there have been multiple inbound inquiries from prospects. We sold the last
two available buses, so our fleet is now 100% allocated.

In addition to wraps from Rafi Law and Lerner & Rowe Accident Attorneys, we have added
Citrine Law and Nova Home Loans to our bus wrap advertisers. The new clients are
developing artwork, and the buses should be live by mid-May.

Karnas Law withdrew at the last minute from a contract for five buses, which would have
had major impact on our cost and timeline. However, Lerner & Rowe stepped in and
contracted four of those buses in addition to their previous agreement for shelters and
paratransit vehicles, thus preserving our production prices and timeline. We held back one
other bus to preserve the YCAT branding for our marketing and community engagement
purposes.

Quechan Casino signed for a batch of display and side panel ads. Lerner & Rowe signed
for all available back panels and cross-traffic side panels. We continue to court prospects
to fill out the remaining inventory of shelter ads, though space outside the City of Yuma is
generating little interest.

We continue to narrow down and streamline the sellable shelter inventory, removing
obstructed panels and outlying locations, to optimize our progress toward the maximum.
We are acquiring and installing improved substrates to mount the shelter ads more
reliably, as we experienced some failure of the material.

Number Percent Revenue

sold Sold Generated

Transit Bus Wraps 18 18 100% $224,000.00
Paratransit Bus Wraps 7 7 100% $63,000.00
Shelter Panels 150 122 81% $151,500.00
Interiors 114 1 ~1% $2,610.00

Notes
Bus interiors are appear to be of little value to prospects so far.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
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Recommended Motion. N/A
Legal Counsel Review. N/A

Respectfully submitted, Kirt Manuel, Brand Ambassador

For information regarding this agenda item, please contact Shelly Kreger via email
to: skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for submission:

(g hor—

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Monthly YCIPTA Board Meeting Report RATP Dev
Anabel Teran GM RATP Dev USA

April 21, 2025

This monthly report summarizes any operations, maintenance, management, finance, or other actions
outside of normal YCAT public transit operations.

Safety Update: Since the last board meeting, we have had 4 at-fault Collisions:

o March 18 - Bus struck a fire hydrant while attempting a right turn (Ave A & 3" St)

o April 1 -Bus struck a pole while backing up (2660 W 24" St)

o April 16 — Mobility device tip while driver was making a left turn (Hwy 95 & Co.19)
Note: The operators have received refresher training and progressive discipline when
applicable.

e Staffing level update: One Road supervisor is on medical leave. A class of 3 new drivers began

4/7/2025 (Training takes approximately 5-6 weeks).

e Bernard Thomas, Safety & Training manager, Kendall Driscoll, Bus Operator, and Jesus Munoz,

Bus Operator received the RATPDev Certified Instructor Program on April 14, 2025.

e We hired the 4th maintenance technician and are now fully staffed in the maintenance
department.

e  Fun Activity on Friday, April 18, 2025 — Easter Egg Hunt focused on Pre-Trip Inspection.

e 13 out of 28 drivers received a certificate and a bonus for practicing “Safe Driving Behaviors”

e Operations update: Due to drivers’ callouts, route 95-6-1 was canceled on 3/17/25 and 3/19/25

(last canceled was March 10th).

e Maintenance Update: Maintenance Manager Max Isbell- Down List Update, Road Call Update.
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14 Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.qgov

Transit Directors Report

e Attended monthly meeting with RATP Dev.

e Attended the YMPO FY26-27 Unified Work Program and Budget with
YMPO and FTA.

e Attended a pre-ssite visit with RLS Consulting for the upcoming Triennial
Review.

e Triennial Review on-site visit April 8 & 9t.

e Attended the Triennial Review Exit conference with FTA and consultants.

e Met with our IT service provider about upcoming projects to improve our
infrastructure (servers, etc).

e Attended the Year 2 5311 budget meeting with ADOT

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
lan McGaughey — Chairman — Yuma County, Matias Rosales — Vice Chairman — City of San Luis
Brian Golding, Sr.- Sec/Treas - Quechan Tribe Jay Simonton - City of Yuma,

Vacant — Arizona Western College, Arturo Durazo — Cocopah Tribe,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Louie Galaviz- City of Somerton

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14 Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycat.az.qov

Transit Operations Report

e Total ridership for March 2025 was 41,190 passengers

o Ridership is down from the March 2024 ridership of 45,795
passengers

o Pre-COVID ridership for March 2019 was 45,311 passengers
e | attended the Regional Mobility Committee meeting at YMPO

e We are working with our IT Management provider to update and reinforce
our infrastructure.

o Working closely with the provider, we have begun to
o This may involve migrating and possibly changing our email

addresses to a “.org” domain. This will allow the complete
management and security of our email and cloud services.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Brian Golding Sr. — Chairman — Quechan Tribe, Louie Galaviz — Vice Chairman — City of Somerton
Arturo Durazo, Sr.- Sec/Treas — Cocopah Tribe, Jay Simonton — City of Yuma,
lan McGaughey — Yuma County, Czarina Gallegos — Arizona Western College,

Richard Marsh — Town of Wellton, Lizeth Servin — City of San Luis

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
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Route
Orange 2
Brown 3
Green 4
Blue 5
Purple 6
Gold 8
Silver 9
Turquoise 10
Night Cat 11
Yellow 95

Specials

Totals

YoA

Cash Fares
Basic Devia- Disc
Cash tions Cash
411 0 223
72 52 132
587 0 788
274 2 236
471 0 409
24 5 15
68 0 35
220 0 0
4l 0 9
6,624 0 5,857
5,490 0 0

14,312 59 7,704

Estimated Revenue Collected

Revenue Type: Each

Basic Cash Fare: $2.00
Deviations: $2.00

Discount Cash Fare: $1.00

Day Pass: $5.00

Discount Day Pass: $2.50
Newspapers/Guide: $0.50-$1.50

Printed: 04/17/2025 2:49:59PM

Day
Pass

51
42
179
83
99

15

884

1,357

Pass Media

Disc  Passes
Day  Accepted

29

60

153

100

61

30

342

775

Total

$28,624.00
$118.00
$7,704.00
$6,785.00
$1,937.50
$25.00

$45,193.50

826
265
1,509
570
492
83

85

48

5,005

8,883

Smart
Cards

Xfers

RIDERSHIP AND FARES

Miscellan

Free

118

16

223

51

100

12

772

1,300

162

Aztec

6

10

198

175

595

1,004

Special Revenues

YPIC
4
2

353

30

207

599

Colleges
1,762
179

425

23

126

169

1,324

87

1,479

5,574

Coco-
pah

4

160
58
1,143

13

31

438

1,889

Vista

Period: 3/1/2019 to 3/31/2019

Statistics
WC Bikes
9 61
5 14
9 49
14 28
63 77
0 12
0 0
4 14
9 5
97 276
55 0

265 536

[

Other Total
Items Pax

4 3,539

2 786

5 5,662

1 1,405

3 3,159

1 376

0 1,551

3 232

0 253

2 22,858

0 5,490

50 45,311
Developed for YCIPTA

by Solutions for Transit
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Route

Orange 2

Green 4
Green 4A
Blue 5

Purple 6
Gold 8
Silver 9
Turquoise 10
Yellow 95

Specials

Grand Total:

REVENUE:

) @i

Cash Fares

Basic
Cash

1,063

435
322
387

396
36
104
197

9,653

0

12,592

Total Revenue:

Disc
Cash

484

387
299
149

210
19
35

7
5,800
0

7,390

Unclassified Revenue:

As a % of Total:

Printed: 04/17/2025 2:45:03PM
File Name: Ridership and Fares GFl.rpt

Devia-
tions

0
0
0
1
0
10
0
0
2
0
13

Day Passes Sold

Day Disc
Passes  Day
87 28
M1 108
56 75
163 55
68 47
21 19
1 2
0 0
695 247
0 0
1,212 581
$39,376.77
$1,104.22

2.80%

Day
Passes

429

875
491
428

253
49
22

3
2,078
0

4,628

Passes Accepted

31-Day 10Ride Single-

Passes Passes
183 1
310 8
141 26
237 0

62 7
28 0
55 0
0 0
1,638 192
0 0

2,654 244

Ride

o

o O o o o o o o o

Free

<5& Grey-

PCAs

7

26
68
47

53
4
2
0

351
4

669

163

o

o N O O O O o o -

hound

Promo

o
gnccccccn—n

On Call

25

52
40
27

47

Aztec

RIDERSHIP AND FARES

Period: 3/1/2024 to 3/31/2024

Special Revenues

YPIC Colleges Coc

5 1,268
32 303
13 205
0 84
7 89
0 162
3 1,274
0 0
96 1,745
0 4
156 5,134

30

67
42
25

1,142
13
39

198

1,557

Vista

82

847
664

49
28
20

484

2,174

Statistics

WC Bikes Guides|

3 78
8 50
8 36
8 104
28 29
0 2
1 49
0 4
39 288
43 2
138 642

© N O O O o o o o o

Total
Pax

3,773

3,586
2,444
1,604

2,432
379
1,571
207

23,386
6,414

45,795

Developed for YCIPTA
by Solutions for Transit



Route izzlkf
Orange 2 792
Green 4 397
Green 4A 263
Blue 5 286
Purple 6 381
Gold 8 24
Silver 9 72
Turquoise 10 210
Yellow 95 9,277
Specials 4
Grand Total: 11,706
REVENUE:

Total Revenue:

) @i

Cash Fares

Disc
Cash

333

324
325
132

265

5,684
0

7,141

Unclassified Revenue:

As a % of Total:

Printed: 04/17/2025 2:43:18PM
File Name: Ridership and Fares GFl.rpt

Devia-
tions

0

N ©o o o o

o NN o o

9

Day Passes Sold

Day Disc
Passes  Day
73 38
70 103
63 79
118 52
73 49
7 1
1 1
1 0
637 254
0 0
1,043 587
$36,650.00
$906.36
2.47%

Day
Passes

293

580
382
358

225
28
17

2
1,724
0

3,609

2,835

Passes Accepted

31-Day 10Ride Single-
Passes Passes Ride

128 1 0
267 23 0
165 22 0
195 0 0
108 62 0
5 4 0
130 0 0
1 0 0
1,836 181 0
0 0 0
303 0

Free

< ]
P(?Ai rirj:d Pro
123 0 209
8 0 1
23 0 0
5 0 0
80 0
2 0 0
3 1 0
1 0 0
M2 3 153
0 0 4827
580 4 5190

164

1

RIDERSHIP AND FARES

Period: 3/1/2025 to 3/31/2025

Special Revenues
Coc
YPIC Colleges

0 1,211 27

55 312 58
26 232 51

0 45 70
1 48 1,304
2 93 2

7 1,214 79

0 0 1
1 1,331 281

0 1 7
112 4,487 1,880

Vista

37

565
424

52
29
36

347

1,490

Statistics Total
Pax
WC Bikes Guides
7 93 0 3,295
8 3 0 2,812
23 48 0 2,092
23 83 0 1,301
34 67 0 2,636
0o 1 0 219
0 21 0 1,617
1 14 0 230
71 407 0 22,148
7 0 0 4,840
174 775 0

41,190

Developed for YCIPTA
by Solutions for Transit
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	BOD meeting 031425-Final
	No.1 Adopt the March 24 2025 regular session minutes—action required.
	No.1 Discussion and/or action regarding the new appointment for AWC Board of Director Czarina Gallegos, Vice President of Financial and Administrative Services. No action is required.
	.
	No.2 Discussion and or action regarding possible the renewal of Board of Director term for Louie Galaviz, City of Somerton, to February.28, 2030.  Action required
	No.3 Discussion and or action Discussion and or action regarding new appointments to the Personnel Subcommittee. Action required.
	No.4 Discussion and or action regarding new appointments to the Bylaws Subcommittee.
	Action required.
	No.5. Discussion and or action regarding new appointments to the Financial Sustainability Committee. Action required.
	No.6 Discussion and or action regarding new appointments to the Transit Operations and Planning Subcommittee. Action required.
	No.7 Discussion and action regarding YCIPTA Shelter and Bus Advertising Program. No action required.
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